
 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

Members of the public and representatives of the media are welcome to attend but are 
warned that items marked with an asterisk (*) may involve discussion of confidential 

information and the council may resolve to exclude members of the public and press if this is 
deemed to be in the public interest 

There will be a meeting of the Full Council on Tuesday, 25th April, 2023 to be held at Newton Leys 
Pavilion, Furzey Way commencing at 7.30 pm to transact the items of business set out in the agenda 
below. 
 

 
Delia Shephard 
Clerk to the Council 
Monday, 17 April 2023 
 
 
A G E N D A 
  
1.   Councillors' apologies for absence 

 
 

 
2.   Councillors' declarations of interest in matters on the agenda  
 (Under the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, 

made under s30 (3) of the Localism Act, councillors are required to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in any of the items under 
consideration at this meeting) 
  

 

 

 
3.   Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 28 March 2023 of Full Council 

 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4.   Public Speaking  
 To receive representations from members of the public on items on the agenda and 

to hear questions from members of the public about council business which may not 
be listed on the agenda. 
  
Members of the public who wish to present  a spoken or written representation 
should contact the Clerk no later than 12 noon on the day before the day of the 
meeting in order to register to be heard.  
  
The public speaking session will generally last no more than 15 minutes and 
individuals will be permitted to speak for a maximum of 3 minutes. 
  
Requests to speak or ask questions will be dealt with in the order in which they have 
been received by the Clerk. 
  
For more information or to register to speak please contact: 
Delia Shephard 
Town Clerk 
01908 649469 
clerk@bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk 
  
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded including the representations made 
by members of the public. 

 

 

 
5.   Draft  minutes of recent meetings of committees of the council and to consider any 

recommendations  therein not included on the agenda 
 

 

 
 (i)   Draft Minutes of Community Committee 4 April 2023  

 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 (ii)   Draft minutes of Finance and Governance Committee 18 April 2023  

 
(Pages 9 - 12) 

 
6.   Changes to the financial regulations as recommended by the Finance and 

Governance Committee 
 

(Pages 13 - 32) 

 
7.   Receipt and approval of internal auditor's final report for the financial year 2022 -2023 (Pages 33 - 40) 

Public Document Pack

mailto:clerk@bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk


 

 

as recommended by the Finance and Governance Committee 
  

8.   To approve the council's annual governance statement and accountability return as  
recommended by the Finance and Governance Committee 

 

(Pages 41 - 46) 

 
9.   To note the arrangements for advertising the period during which electors and 

interested persons may exercise rights relating to the annual accounts 
 

(Pages 47 - 48) 

 
10.   To note and approve  the Town Council's Annual Report for the year 2022- 23 to be 

presented at the annual meeting of electors on 11 May 2023 
 

(Pages 49 - 76) 

 
11.   To review the Town Council's delivery plan for the year 2022-2023 

 
(Pages 77 - 100) 

 
12.   To approve the Town Council's delivery plan for the financial year 2023-2024 

 
(Pages 101 - 112) 

 
13.   To review the Town Council's new constitution document and associated policies 

including the scheme of delegations and committee structure 
 

(Pages 113 - 148) 

 
14.   To approve the Town Council's draft communications action plan for 2023-24 which 

includes resumption of live streaming of town council and committee meetings 
 

(Pages 149 - 152) 

 
15.   To consider a proposal to extend the free period of usage of Newton Leys Pavilion by 

Ping Pong Social at a cost of up to £2,574 
 

(Pages 153 - 154) 

 
16.   To note the increase in swimming prices at Bletchley Leisure Centre and the impact 

this will have on the Town Council's free subsidised swimming scheme 
 

(Pages 155 - 162) 

 
17.   To review and comment on planning/licensing applications due to be considered by 

Milton Keynes Council 
 

 

 
 (i)   DBI04474 New Premises Licence Application - B2B, Unit 3 Stanier Square, 

Bletchley, Milton Keynes, MK2 2FY - Sale of alcohol: 4pm - 10.30pm indoors 
only.  Late Night Refreshment and sale of alcohol 11pm - 4am via 
online/phone deliveries only.  
 

(Pages 163 - 166) 

 



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

1 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Full Council of Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council 
held at Sports Hall - Newton Leys Pavilion on Tuesday, 28th March, 2023 commencing at 
7.30 pm 
 
Present:  Cllrs R Graham, Clark, Palmer, G Bedford, S Browne, L Campbell, K Ely, R Haine, 

E Hume, Hussein, M McDonald, E O'Rourke, Osumili, A Segebrecht, T Stephens and 
M Wymer 
 

Absent: Cllr S Porter 
 

Apologies: Cllrs E Kelly-Wilson, Elhasoglu, M Imran and A Khanom 
 

In 
attendance: 

Delia Shephard (Town Clerk) (Clerk) and John Fairclough (Support Services 
Manager) 

 
Min Ref 
  
FC22/23-102 Councillors' apologies for absence 
 It was RESOLVED that the apologies for absence and the absences without apologies 

listed above be noted.  Cllr Hussein had sent apologies for anticipated late arrival and 
these were also noted.   

  
FC22/23-103 Councillors' declarations of interest in matters on the agenda 
 Cllr Hume declared an interest in agenda item 11 concerning the deed of surrender of 

the lease on Bletchley Library due to his role as a Milton Keynes City Councillor and 
signalled his intention to withdraw from the meeting for this item of business. 

  
FC22/23-104 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 24 January 2023 Full Council 
 It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the meeting of full council held on 

Tuesday 24 January 2023 be approved as a correct record of proceedings with one 
alteration on page 2 minute reference FC22/23-93.ii.  The draft included an 
extraneous line of text in a table of recorded votes saying “Alison Brown     No vote 
recorded.” It was RESOLVED that this line of the table be removed. 

  
FC22/23-105 Public Speaking 
 Two members of the public made oral representations to the council concerning 

agenda item 12 which was a motion about the Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town 
Deal.   Both speakers were broadly supportive of the motion and voiced their concerns 
(and those of fellow residents) about the level of community engagement which had 
taken place over the life of the Town Deal.   Points raised included perceived failure of 
the Town Deal to comply with its own community engagement plan, dissatisfaction 
with the amount and accessibility of information provided to the community and 
disappointment with a recent meeting held locally. In addition speakers stressed the 
importance of providing information via a non-party political forum and noted  
residents’ reliance on informal  social media channels in the absence of information 
from more official channels.  
  
On behalf of the council the vice-chair thanked both members of the public for their 
contributions. 

  
FC22/23-106 Minutes of recent meetings of committees of the council and recommendations 

contained therein 
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

2 
 

FC22/23-106.i Draft minutes of meeting Tuesday, 7 February 2023 Community Committee 
 It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the Community Committee meeting held 

on 7 February 2023 be noted. 
  

FC22/23-106.ii Draft minutes of meeting Tuesday, 28 February 2023 Finance and Governance 
Committee 

 It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the Finance and Governance Committee 
meeting held on 28 February 2023 be noted. 

  
FC22/23-107 Draft minutes of meeting Tuesday 14 March 2023  Environment and Planning 

Committee 
 It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the meeting of the Environment and 

Planning Committee  held on Tuesday 14 March 2023 be noted. 
  
It was further RESOLVED to approve the recommendation of the committee and to 
adopt the new Biodiversity Policy Statement with immediate effect. 

  
FC22/23-108 To review and comment on planning applications due to be considered by 

Milton Keynes Council 
  

FC22/23-108.i 23/00563/CLUE - 60 Laidon Close Bletchley Milton Keynes MK2 3NU - Certificate 
of lawfulness for existing use as a 4 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (C4 
dwelling) 

 The clerk noted that this item had been included on the agenda as HiMOs were not 
included in officer delegated powers.  The application for a certificate of lawfulness 
referred to a dwelling  which was stated to have been operated as a HiMO for over 10 
years (ie longer than the maximum enforcement period) therefore no action could be 
taken unless evidence could be provided showing that this usage is more recent.  
  
Following member discussion it  was RESOLVED to make no comments on the 
application for a certificate of lawfulness.  

  
FC22/23-109 Summary financial  report showing income and expenditure against budget to 

28 February 2023 
 (Cllr Campbell left the meeting.) 

  
It was RESOLVED to note the summary report showing income and expenditure 
against budget.    

  
FC22/23-110 List of payments due to be ratified 
 (Cllr Campbell rejoined the meeting.) 

  
 It was RESOLVED that the list of payments circulated with the agenda be approved.  
  
(Cllr Hussein joined the meeting.) 

  
FC22/23-111 Comprehensive asset register as at 22 March 2023 
 It was RESOLVED to note the full asset register as at 22 March 2023.  

  
FC22/23-112 Funding from  MKCC for celebration of the royal coronation in May and 

allocation of funds 
 The clerk advised that correspondence had been received from MKCC offering the 

town council £1,500 to spend to support events and activities to celebrate the 
coronation of King Charles III.  The funding has been allocated to town and parish 

Page 2



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

3 
 

councils on the basis of high street areas (where many events are likely to take place) 
and those with multiple community areas.  Bletchley and Fenny Stratford fell into the 
group given the highest level of funding along with Wolverton and Newport Pagnell 
because of their large town centres/high streets with multiple community areas.   
  
The clerk had provisionally accepted the funding ad it was RESOLVED to refer 
arrangements for the use of this funding to a meeting of the Community Committee on 
4 April 2023.  

  
FC22/23-113 Clerk's update report on matters concerning the Bletchley and Fenny Stratford 

Town Deal 
 It was RESOLVED to note the Clerk’s report on matters concerning the Town Deal 

along with correspondence received from members of the public. 
  
The clerk advised that arrangements had been made for John Cove, Chair of 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Deal Board to attend the annual meeting of 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford electors on Thursday 11 May 2023 to update the 
community on work undertaken so far and future plans.  

  
FC22/23-114 Resolution regarding the former Sainsbury's supermarket site proposed by Cllr 

Ed Hume and seconded by Cllr Gavin Bedford 
 Cllr Hume introduced a motion welcoming the acquisition of the former Sainsbury’s 

site by Milton Keynes Development Corporation and discussion followed.  
  
(During discussion Cllr Wymer left the meeting briefly but returned before the 
discussion was completed and voting took place.) 
  
It was RESOLVED that Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council noted that: 
  

i       the former Sainsburys supermarket had been purchased by Milton Keynes 
Development Corporation (MKDP) using the revolving fund from the Bletchley 
and Fenny Stratford Town Deal investment plan  

ii      the Brunel Centre and associated landholdings were acquired by MKDP last 
year 

  
and the council believed that: 
  

i       the combined ownership of these sites by MKDP will unlock opportunities for 
the development of Bletchley including the opening up of Queensway, new 
retailers, new businesses, community facilities and a health hub 

ii      the development of a transport hub nearby will enable better connections with 
the town centre and any development on the sites of Sainsburys and the 
Brunel Centre 

iii     the community engagement on Town Deal  projects and sites should be 
informed by an Advisory Working Group supporting the Town Deal Board, and 
made up of local residents, local businesses, faith representatives, town and 
parish councillors and other stakeholders that reflect the diverse community of 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford.   
  

It was further RESOLVED that  the town clerk be asked to send a copy of the 
resolution above to the Chair and Vice-chair of the town deal board.  

  
FC22/23-115 Progress report on Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council Neighbourhood 

Page 3



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

4 
 

Plan 
 Cllr Gavin Bedford, chair of the Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Neighbourhood Plan 

Steering Group gave an oral report on progress with preparation of the Neighbourhood 
Plan.  He noted that two volunteer task teams had been set up an Environment Team 
working on green and blue infrastructure and a Development Team focusing on the 
built environment. Cllr Bedford expressed his thanks for the hard work of the 
volunteers who were giving up their time to gather information and would be helping to 
shape the emerging policies.  The steering group continued to meet monthly and two 
new members had joined recently: Cllr Ismail Hussein and Mr Patrick Ormonde.  
  
It was RESOLVED to note the report.  

  
FC22/23-116 Update report on Milton Keynes Council's Parishes Forum 
 Cllr Terry Stephens and the clerk had attended a meeting of MKCC’s Parishes Forum 

on 16 March 2023.  Cllr Stephens reported that the meeting included three useful 
presentations.  The first was from Buckinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service.  Stuart 
Grosse provided information about the service which had received 3000 emergency 
calls in 2022.  Out of 43 arsons reported 25 were in Milton Keynes.  The force had 300 
full time firefighters with 96 on call at any given time. The service had an annual 
budget of £33.5 million and was working hard to reduce deliberate and secondary fires 
(eg those caused by fly tipping).  During 2022 the heat wave caused considerable 
pressures with 220 call outs on 19 July and 157 on 12 August alone. In response to 
questions from Cllr Stephens, Stuart Grosse also talked about fire related problems at 
the Blue Lagoon and advocated for the planned new Public Space Protection Order, 
increased signage and ideally the introduction of wardens. 
  
A second presentation concerned the National Energy Foundation’s warmth and well being 
service and provided useful information about how those in fuel poverty could seek help and 
support.  It was estimated  that in 2020 3.16 million people in the UK were living in fuel 
poverty and in 2022 this had risen to 9.1 million. 
  
Finally Jeremy Draper of MKCC had given a brief presentation on the City Council’s Carbon 
Offset Fund which could provide opportunities for the town council in the future. 
  
The clerk noted that once the slides from the presentations had been made available 
these would be distributed to members.  

  
FC22/23-117 Correspondence  from Thames Valley Policy concerning review of local policing 
 It was RESOLVED to note correspondence from Jason Hogg, Deputy Chief Constable 

of Thames Valley Policy including a Partner Feedback Report (February 2023) and a 
Force Review briefing (March 2023). 

  
FC22/23-118 Deed of surrender on lease of Bletchley Library and to approve expenditure on 

MKCC's legal fees 
 (Cllr Hume left the room for discussion and voting on this item.)  

  
It was RESOLVED to approve signature of a formal deed of surrender of the Town 
Council’s lease of premises at Bletchley Library with Milton Keynes City Council. 
  
It was RESOLVED to approve the payment of £545.00 to MKCC in respect of their 
legal fees including a Land Registration fee of £45.   
  
(Cllr Hume rejoined the meeting.) 

  

Page 4



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

5 
 

FC22/23-119 Replacement of town councillor tablets and ongoing remote technical support 
from Cloudy IT 

 Following member feedback at a recent meeting the clerk had been asked to 
investigate replacement of councillor tablets (purchased in 2019) including provision of 
larger devices and remote IT support for members.  A confidential quotation from the 
Council’s current IT support provider Cloudy IT had been circulated and this had been 
compared with quotations for direct purchase of upgraded tablets by officers. 
Discussion followed and differing views were expressed. 
  
It was RESOLVED that an order would be placed with Cloudy IT in the sum of 
£8,832.00 which included replacement of 18 existing councillor tablets with Lenovo 
Tab P11 (2nd Gen) ZABL tablets and Lenovo keyboards and a one off fee for set up 
and configuration of these and a monthly payment for councillor tablet device 
management of £36.00 per month.  This resolution was passed on the proviso that the 
existing 18 tablets would be used for community engagement purposes or 
recycled/donated within the community.  

  
FC22/23-120 Lease on premises at 21 Barton Road 
 A confidential solicitor’s report on the proposed underlease of premises at 21 Barton 

Road was noted and members had the opportunity to ask any further questions about 
the underlease which had already been approved in principle on a previous occasion. 
It was further noted that a photographic condition report was appended to the 
underlease.  
  
It was RESOLVED to approve the underlease relating and authorise signature of this 
and a statutory declaration to exclude the lease from the 1954 Act.  

  
FC22/23-121 Exclusion of Public 
 It was RESOLVED that members of the public and press be excluded from the 

meeting during the consideration of the following items of business as publicity would 
be prejudicial to the public interest because of the confidential nature of the business 
to be transacted which could result in legal action. 

  
FC22/23-122 Confidential property matter 
 A confidential report was tabled which concerned arrangements for the execution of a 

break clause in leased premises in Bletchley and included recommendations for 
expenditure on dilapidations. 
  
It was RESOLVED to note the report and to approve the recommendations therein.  

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.50 pm 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

1 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Community Committee of Bletchley and Fenny Stratford 
Town Council held at Sports Hall - Newton Leys Pavilion on Tuesday, 4th April, 2023 
commencing at 7.30 pm 
 
Present:  Cllrs T Stephens, M Wymer, S Browne and E Kelly-Wilson 

 
Absent: Cllrs L Campbell, R Graham and A Khanom 

 
Apologies: Cllrs Clark, Palmer and Elhasoglu 

 
In 
attendance: 

John Fairclough (Clerk) and Davina Pancholi-Ifould (Community Events Officer) 

 
Min Ref 
  
CC23/24-1 Councillors' apologies for absence 
   

It was RESOLVED to note the apologies as listed above. 
  

CC23/24-2 Councillors' declarations of interest in matters on the agenda 
   

No declarations of interest were made. 
  
  

CC23/24-3 Draft minutes of the previous meetings of the committee 
   

It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the last meeting be approved as a correct 
record of proceedings. 
  
  

CC23/24-4 Public Speaking Time 
   

There were no representations from members of the public. 
  
  

CC23/24-5 Grant application in the sum of £1000 from the Stony Stratford Lions Club 
   

A representative from the Stony Stratford Lions Club was unavailable to attend to 
answer questions from members. However, it was RESOLVED that a grant of £1000 
would be awarded towards the Coronation event. 
  
  

CC23/24-6 Grant application in the sum of £5750 from Fenny Poppers 
   

A representative from Fenny Poppers addressed the Council to share plans for the 
2023 event and answered questions from members. 
  
It was RESOLVED that a sum of £5,750 be awarded towards the event. 
  
  

CC23/24-7 Arrangements for events and activities to celebrate the coronation of HM King 
Charles III and allocation of funding provided by Milton Keynes City Council 

   

Page 7

Agenda Item 5.i



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

2 
 

It was RESOLVED that the Local of Lakes Resident Association with support from 
Leon and Central Bletchley Residents Association would organise an event to 
celebrate the Kings Coronation. 
  
The event was proposed to take place on 6 May 2023 on Stanier Square, Queensway 
in Bletchley. A community grant application would need to be made to the town council 
for funding that will enable the event to go ahead. 
  

CC23/24-8 March 2023 market and upcoming Town Council events 
   

The community events and support services officer shared a report on the market held 
in March on Stanier Square, Queensway along with the 2023 event programme.  
  
The market attracted a strong footfall for the town centre with a selection of food and 
craft stalls on offer. Plans are now underway for the second year of The Bletchley Big 
Eat which takes place on 29 July 2023. 
  

CC23/24-9 Vegan market 
   

The community events and support services officer shared a report on the next vegan 
market on 20 May 2023. The vegan market will be charged a fee by the town council 
to run the market to cover costs that are incurred when these events are held in the 
area. 
  

CC23/24-10 Award of funding in the sum of £9757 from the National Lottery Community 
Fund to support Bletchley Big Street Eat 

   
It was RESOLVED to note the award of funding from the National Lottery Community 
Fund to support the Bletchley Big Street Eat 2023. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.26 pm 

Page 8



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

1 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Finance and Governance Committee of Bletchley and Fenny 
Stratford Town Council held at Sports Hall - Newton Leys Pavilion on Tuesday, 18th 
April, 2023 commencing at 7.30 pm 
 
Present:  Cllrs S Browne, K Ely, R Haine, E Kelly-Wilson, M McDonald and M Wymer 

 
  
Apologies: Cllrs R Graham, E O'Rourke and A Segebrecht 

 
In 
attendance: 

Delia Shephard (Town Clerk) and Alison Brown (Finance Manager) (Clerk) 

 
Min Ref 
  
FC23/24-1 To note apologies for absence 
 It was RESOLVED to note the apologies listed above. 

  
FC23/24-2 To note councillors'  declarations of interest in matters on the agenda 
 Cllr Wymer declared an interest in agenda item 16 which concerned a grant 

application made by Locals of the Lakes Residents’ Association of which she was 
chair and advised that she would leave the meeting for discussion and voting on this 
item.  
  

FC23/24-3 To approve the draft minutes  of the previous meeting of the committee 
 It was RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the previous meeting on 28 February 2023 

be approved as a correct record. 
  

FC23/24-4 Public Speaking Time 
 There were no representations from members of the public. 

  
FC23/24-5 To review and comment on any planning applications due for review by Milton 

Keynes City Council 
 There were no applications for consideration. 

  
FC23/24-6 To note applications due to be considered by MKCC for trading licenses 

  
FC23/24-6i Licensing application 165863 Home Bargains, Beacon Retail Park MK1 1BN 
 It was RESOLVED to make no comments on the licensing application. 

  
FC23/24-6ii Street Trading Consent Renewal - Caz Bar.  Days and Hours applied for: Mon – 

Fri 07:00 – 14:00 (Current: Mon – Sat 07:00 - 14:00) 
 It was RESOLVED to make no comments on the licensing renewal. 

   
FC23/24-7 To review and note a financial management information report showing income 

and expenditure against budget for the year to 31 March 2023 
 The RFO reported that, for the financial year ending 31 March 2023, the council was 

reporting an underspend of £22,243, which would be transferred to general reserves.  
  
It was RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
  
The clerk informed members that for the financial year ending 31 March 2024, 
financial management information reports would be prepared on a committee basis 
and financial reports will be provided at each committee meeting whilst the full income 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5.ii



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

2 
 

and expenditure against budget would continue to be reported to the Finance and 
Governance Committee and Full Council.  
  

FC23/24-8 To review and note cash and investment reconciliations to 31 March 2023 
 It was RESOLVED that the cash and investment reconciliations be noted. 

  
FC23/24-9 To review and note the council's balance sheet as at 31 March 2023 
 It was RESOLVED that the balance sheet to 31 March 2023 be noted. 

It was RESOLVED that the list of individual transactions over £500 for the period be 
noted. 
  

FC23/24-10 To ratify a list of payments made or due to be made to 30 April 2023 
 It was RESOLVED that the list of payments made or due to be made which had been 

published with the agenda be ratified. 
  

FC23/24-11 To receive a premises report and consider any recommendations therein 
 The clerk gave an oral report to members providing information on three areas; 

  
i       Lease of premises at 74/76 Queensway – all required dilapidation works 

identified in the council’s surveyor report had been completed to order that the 
break clause in the lease could  be actioned on 7 April 2023 and confirmed that 
the building had been handed back to the landlord with vacant possession on 6 
April 2023.  A summary of dilapidations costs which had been approved in the 
usual way was tabled. The Town Council’s solicitors would be taking steps to 
remove the registration lease from the Land Registry as soon as practical.  

ii      Sycamore Hall – the further bat  surveys would start in the first week of May 
2023 and take place over a period of 6 – 8 weeks.  

iii     21 Barton Road – the lease for the landscaping depot is complete and ready for 
signing by members as previously approved by council. It was anticipated that 
the council would enter the premises within the next 4 weeks which would 
permit storage of council vehicles at the depot and preparation of the premises 
for use as the landscaping depot.  It was noted that some additional costs 
would be incurred eg to install bollards at the depot to manage potential 
parking issues and these would be authorised and reported in the usual way.  
  

Following discussion and questions councillors noted the exceptional work of the staff 
team on property matters during March which had involved considerable unpaid 
overtime.  It was RESOLVED to recommend to the Employment Policy Committee that 
staff be compensated by way of an additional day’s annual leave.  
  

FC23/24-12 To review financial regulations and scheme of delegations 
 The RFO detailed the amendments to the financial regulations for the 2023/24 

financial year, as detailed below; 
  
Item 6.14 – updated to reflect the change to the single transaction limit approved in 
minute FC22/23-75. The item will now read as follows, 
  

Any Debit Card issued for use will be specifically restricted to the Clerk 
[and will also be restricted to a single transaction maximum value of 
£1,500 unless authorised by council or finance committee in writing before 
any order is placed. On-line purchases for software that are in excess of 
£1,500, delegated officer powers should be used (RFO or Proper 

Page 10



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

3 
 

Officer) in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of Finance and 
Governance whose approval would be sought in advance. 

  

Item 6.16 a – the current petty cash float is £250, however, on the basis that the local 
NatWest branch is closing in June 2023, the RFO would like the limit increased to 
£500. The item will now read as follows, 

The RFO shall maintain a petty cash float of £500 for the purpose of 
defraying operational and other expenses.  

It was RESOLVED to recommend to full council that the draft Financial 
Regulations 2023 be formally approved on 25 April 2023. 

Review of the scheme of delegation was withdrawn from consideration at this 
meeting and would be reviewed at full council. 

  
  

FC23/24-13 To review the council's 2022-2023 delivery plan and to make recommendations 
to officers regarding preparation of the 2023-2024 delivery plan 

 Members reviewed the council’s delivery plan for 2022/23 and it was RESOLVED to 
recommend this to full council on 25 April 2023 for approval. 
  
Discussion followed on preparing the delivery plan for 2023/24, members felt that the 
current format provided a large quantity of information.  It was RESOLVED that the 
new delivery plan would be split into plan into two separate plans one for specific 
projects/actions and an internal plan for “business as usual”.  The projects and actions 
delivery plan would be published and would continue to be  reviewed at each Finance 
and Governance Committee.    The “business as usual” plan would  be managed 
internally by officers and made available internally as required.  
  

FC23/24-14 To review the final internal audit report for 2022/23 
 It was RESOLVED to vary the order of the agenda and deal with the internal audit 

report next. Members reviewed a final internal audit report for the year 2022-23 
completed on behalf of the Town Council by Auditing Solutions dated 12 April 2023. 
There were no matters brought to the attention of the Town Council. Discussion 
followed and the committee congratulated officers on their work  
  
It was RESOLVED to recommend to full council that the report be formally approved 
on 25 April 2023.  
  
  

FC23/24-15 To approve the Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2022/23 
 Members reviewed the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for the 2022/23 

financial year. The clerk reminded members that the review not only relates to the 
financial data, but also to their responsibility to ensure a sound system of financial 
control as indicated by their agreement on page 4 of the governance statement.  
  
It was RESOLVED to recommend to full council that the AGAR be formally approved 
on 25 April 2023. 

Page 11



 

 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council  
 

 

4 
 

  
  

FC23/24-16 To approve a community grant to Locals of the Lakes to provide a coronation 
event 

 (Cllr Wymer left the meeting prior to any discussion of this item of business in which 
she had an interest.) 
  
Members discussed a grant application from the Locals of the Lakes Residents 
Association to provide a Coronation Strawberry Fayre for the community, as part of 
The Big Lunch, on the 8 May 2023.   The event would be supported by the Town 
Council and Leon Residents Association. 
  
It was RESOLVED that a sum of £6,500.00 be awarded to enable the event to be 
organised. A sum of £5,500.00 to be taken from the coronation budget and the 
remaining £1000.00 to be taken from the community grants budget. 
  
(Cllr Wymer returned to the meeting after the item was concluded.) 
  
  
  
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.11 pm 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

BLETCHLEY & FENNY 

STRATFORD TOWN 

COUNCIL 

 

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 

2023 

 
Adopted  

25 April 2023 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

 

 

INDEX 

 

1. GENERAL ..................................................................................................................... 3 

2. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL) ........................................ 6 

3. ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD PLANNING ................................. 7 

4. BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND ............................................ 8 

5. BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF PAYMENTS ..................... 9 

6. INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MAKING OF PAYMENTS ............................................... 10 

7. PAYMENT OF SALARIES .......................................................................................... 12 

8. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS ..................................................................................... 13 

9. INCOME ...................................................................................................................... 14 

10. ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES .................................................. 15 

11. CONTRACTS ........................................................................................................... 15 

12. PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION 
WORKS (PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS) ....................................................................... 17 

13. STORES AND EQUIPMENT ................................................................................... 17 

14. ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES ................................................................ 18 

15. INSURANCE ............................................................................................................ 18 

16. RISK MANAGEMENT .............................................................................................. 19 

17. SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS ........................... 19 

 

  

Page 14



 

3 
 

1. GENERAL 

 

1.1. These financial regulations govern the conduct of financial management by the council 

and may only be amended or varied by resolution of the council. Financial regulations 

are one of the council’s three governing policy documents providing procedural 

guidance for members and officers. Financial regulations must be observed in 

conjunction with the council’s standing orders1 and any individual financial regulations 

relating to contracts. 

1.2. The council is responsible in law for ensuring that its financial management is 

adequate and effective and that the council has a sound system of internal control 

which facilitates the effective exercise of the council’s functions, including 

arrangements for the management of risk. 

1.3. The council’s accounting control systems must include measures: 

• for the timely production of accounts; 

• that provide for the safe and efficient safeguarding of public money; 

• to prevent and detect inaccuracy and fraud; and 

• identifying the duties of officers. 

1.4. These financial regulations demonstrate how the council meets these responsibilities 

and requirements. 

1.5. At least once a year, prior to approving the Annual Governance Statement, the council 

must review the effectiveness of its system of internal control which shall be in 

accordance with proper practices. 

1.6. Deliberate or wilful breach of these Regulations by an employee may give rise to 

disciplinary proceedings. 

1.7. Members of Council are expected to follow the instructions within these Regulations 

and not to entice employees to breach them. Failure to follow instructions within these 

Regulations brings the office of councillor into disrepute. 

1.8. The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) holds a statutory office to be appointed by 

the council. The Finance Manager has been appointed as RFO for this council and 

these regulations will apply accordingly. 

1.9. The RFO; 

• acts under the policy direction of the council; 

• administers the council's financial affairs in accordance with all Acts, 

Regulations and proper practices; 

 
1 Standing Orders for Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council 2023 are contained in a separate 
document available on our website 

Page 15



 

4 
 

• determines on behalf of the council its accounting records and accounting 

control systems; 

• ensures the accounting control systems are observed; 

• maintains the accounting records of the council up to date in accordance with 

proper practices; 

• assists the council to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of its resources; and 

• produces financial management information as required by the council. 

1.10. The accounting records determined by the RFO shall be sufficient to show and 

explain the council’s transactions and to enable the RFO to ensure that any income 

and expenditure account and statement of balances, or record of receipts and 

payments and additional information, as the case may be, or management 

information prepared for the council from time to time comply with the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations. 

1.11. The accounting records determined by the RFO shall in particular contain: 

• entries from day to day of all sums of money received and expended by the 

council and the matters to which the income and expenditure or receipts and 

payments account relate; 

• a record of the assets and liabilities of the council; and 

• wherever relevant, a record of the council’s income and expenditure in relation 

to claims made, or to be made, for any contribution, grant or subsidy. 

1.12. The accounting control systems determined by the RFO shall include: 

• procedures to ensure that the financial transactions of the council are recorded 

as soon as reasonably practicable and as accurately and reasonably as 

possible; 

• procedures to enable the prevention and detection of inaccuracies and fraud 

and the ability to reconstruct any lost records; 

• identification of the duties of officers dealing with financial transactions and 

division of responsibilities of those officers in relation to significant 

transactions; 

• procedures to ensure that uncollectable amounts, including any bad debts are 

not submitted to the council for approval to be written off except with the 

approval of the RFO and that the approvals are shown in the accounting 

records; and 

• measures to ensure that risk is properly managed. 

1.13. The council is not empowered by these Regulations or otherwise to delegate certain 

specified decisions. In particular any decision regarding: 

Page 16



 

5 
 

• setting the final budget or the precept (council tax requirement); 

• approving accounting statements; 

• approving an annual governance statement; 

• borrowing; 

• writing off bad debts; 

• declaring eligibility for the General Power of Competence; and 

• addressing recommendations in any report from the internal or external 

auditors, 

shall be a matter for the full council only. 

1.14. In addition the council must: 

• determine and keep under regular review the bank mandate for all council bank 

accounts;  

• approve any grant or a single commitment in excess of £5,000; and 

• in respect of the annual salary for any employee have regard to 

recommendations about annual salaries of employees made by the relevant 

committee in accordance with its terms of reference. In other words salaries of 

employees may be delegated to a nominated committee. 

1.15. In these financial regulations, references to the Accounts and Audit Regulations or 

‘the regulations’ shall mean the regulations issued under the provisions of section 

27 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding legislation, and then in 

force unless otherwise specified. 

In these financial regulations the term ‘proper practice’ or ‘proper practices’ shall refer to 

guidance issued in Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities in England A 

Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices to be applied to the preparation of statutory annual 

accounts and governance statements issued by the Joint Practitioners Advisory Group 

(JPAG), available from the websites of NALC and the Society for Local Council Clerks 

(SLCC). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

6 
 

2. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL) 

 

2.1. All accounting procedures and financial records of the council shall be determined by 

the RFO in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations, appropriate 

guidance and proper practices. 

2.2. On a regular basis, at least once in each quarter, and at each financial year end, a 

member other than the Chairman shall be appointed to verify bank reconciliations (for 

all accounts) produced by the RFO. The member shall sign the reconciliations and the 

original bank statements (or similar document) as evidence of verification. This activity 

shall on conclusion be reported, including any exceptions, to and noted by the Finance 

Committee. 

2.3. The RFO shall complete the annual statement of accounts, annual report, and any 

related documents of the council contained in the Annual Return (as specified in proper 

practices) as soon as practicable after the end of the financial year and having certified 

the accounts shall submit them and report thereon to the council within the timescales 

set by the Accounts and Audit Regulations. 

2.4. The council shall ensure that there is an adequate and effective system of internal 

audit of its accounting records, and of its system of internal control in accordance with 

proper practices. Any officer or member of the council shall make available such 

documents and records as appear to the council to be necessary for the purpose of 

the audit and shall, as directed by the council, supply the RFO, internal auditor, or 

external auditor with such information and explanation as the council considers 

necessary for that purpose. 

2.5. The internal auditor shall be appointed by and shall carry out the work in relation to 

internal controls required by the council in accordance with proper practices. 

2.6. The internal auditor shall: 

• be competent and independent of the financial operations of the council; 

• report to council in writing, or in person, on a regular basis with a minimum of one 

annual written report during each financial year; 

• to demonstrate competence, objectivity and independence, be free from any 

actual or perceived conflicts of interest, including those arising from family 

relationships; and 

• have no involvement in the financial decision making, management or control of 

the council. 

2.7. Internal or external auditors may not under any circumstances: 

• perform any operational duties for the council; 

• initiate or approve accounting transactions; or 

Page 18



 

7 
 

• direct the activities of any council employee, except to the extent those such 

employees have been appropriately assigned to assist the internal auditor. 

2.8. For the avoidance of doubt, in relation to internal audit the terms ‘independent’ and 

‘independence’ shall have the same meaning as is described in proper practices. 

2.9. The RFO shall make arrangements for the exercise of electors’ rights in relation to the 

accounts including the opportunity to inspect the accounts, books, and vouchers and 

display or publish any notices and statements of account required by Audit 

Commission Act 1998, or any superseding legislation, and the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations. 

2.10. The RFO shall, without undue delay, bring to the attention of all councillors any 

correspondence or report from internal or external auditors unless this correspondence 

is purely an administrative matter (eg confirms receipt of information). 

 

3. ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD PLANNING 

 

3.1. Each committee (if any) shall review its three year forecast of revenue and capital 

receipts and payments. Having regard to the forecast, it shall thereafter formulate and 

submit proposals for the following financial year to the finance committee not later than 

the end of November each year including any proposals for revising the forecast. 

3.2. The RFO must each year, by no later than January, prepare detailed estimates of all 

receipts and payments including the use of reserves and all sources of funding for the 

following financial year in the form of a budget to be considered by the relevant 

committees and the council. 

3.3. The council shall consider annual budget proposals in relation to the council’s three 

year forecast of revenue and capital receipts and payments including 

recommendations for the use of reserves and sources of funding and update the 

forecast accordingly. 

3.4. The council shall fix the precept (council tax requirement), and relevant basic amount 

of council tax to be levied for the ensuing financial year not later than by the end of 

January each year. The RFO shall issue the precept to the billing authority and shall 

supply each member with a copy of the approved annual budget. 

3.5. The approved annual budget shall form the basis of financial control for the ensuing 

year. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

8 
 

 

4. BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND 

 

4.1. Expenditure on revenue items may be authorised up to the amounts included for that 

class of expenditure in the approved budget. This authority is to be determined by: 

• the council for all items over £20,000; 

• a duly delegated committee of the council for items over £3,000; or 

• the Clerk, for any items below £3,000 for routine expenditure (and £5,000 for 

emergency expenditure see below). 

Such authority is to be evidenced by a minute or by an authorisation slip duly signed 

by the Clerk, and where necessary also by the appropriate Chairman. 

Contracts may not be disaggregated to avoid controls imposed by these regulations. 

4.2. No expenditure may be authorised that will exceed the amount provided in the revenue 

budget for that class of expenditure other than by resolution of the council, or duly 

delegated committee. During the budget year and with the approval of council having 

considered fully the implications for public services, unspent and available amounts 

may be moved to other budget headings or to an earmarked reserve as appropriate 

(‘virement’). The Clerk is authorised to vire monies within budgets to a maximum of 

£2,000. 

4.3. Unspent provisions in the revenue or capital budgets for completed projects shall not 

be carried forward to a subsequent year. 

4.4. The salary budgets are to be reviewed at least annually in December for the following 

financial year and such review shall be evidenced by a hard copy schedule signed by 

the Clerk and the Chairman of Council or relevant committee. The RFO will inform 

committees of any changes impacting on their budget requirement for the coming year 

in good time. 

4.5. In cases of extreme risk to the delivery of council services, the clerk may authorise 

revenue expenditure on behalf of the council which in the clerk’s judgement it is 

necessary to carry out. Such expenditure includes repair, replacement or other work, 

whether or not there is any budgetary provision for the expenditure, subject to a limit 

of £5,000. The Clerk shall report such action to the chairman as soon as possible and 

to the council as soon as practicable thereafter. 

4.6. No expenditure shall be authorised in relation to any capital project and no contract 

entered into or tender accepted involving capital expenditure unless the council is 

satisfied that the necessary funds are available and the requisite borrowing approval 

has been obtained. 

4.7. All capital works shall be administered in accordance with the council's standing orders 

and financial regulations relating to contracts. 

Page 20



 

9 
 

4.8. The RFO shall regularly provide the council with a statement of receipts and payments 

to date under each head of the budgets, comparing actual expenditure to the 

appropriate date against that planned as shown in the budget. These statements are 

to be prepared at least at the end of each financial quarter and shall show explanations 

of material variances. For this purpose “material” shall be in excess of 15% of the 

budget. 

4.9. Changes in earmarked reserves shall be approved by council as part of the budgetary 

control process. 

 

5. BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF PAYMENTS  

 

5.1. The council's banking arrangements, including the bank mandate, shall be made by 

the RFO and approved by the council; banking arrangements may not be delegated 

to a committee. They shall be regularly reviewed for safety and efficiency.  

5.2. The RFO shall prepare a schedule of payments requiring authorisation, forming part 

of the Agenda for the Meeting and, together with the relevant invoices, present the 

schedule to the finance committee. The finance committee shall review the schedule 

for compliance and, having satisfied itself shall authorise payment by a resolution of 

the committee.  The approved schedule shall be ruled off and initialled by the 

Chairman of the Meeting. A detailed list of all payments shall be disclosed within or as 

an attachment to the minutes of the meeting at which payment was authorised. 

Personal payments (including salaries, wages, expenses and any payment made in 

relation to the termination of a contract of employment) may be summarised to remove 

public access to any personal information. 

5.3. All invoices for payment shall be examined, verified and certified by the RFO to confirm 

that the work, goods or services to which each invoice relates has been received, 

carried out, examined and represents expenditure previously approved by the council. 

5.4. The RFO shall examine invoices for arithmetical accuracy and analyse them to the 

appropriate expenditure heading. The RFO shall take all steps to pay all invoices 

submitted, and which are in order, at the next available Finance Committee meeting. 

5.5. The Clerk shall have delegated authority to authorise the payment of items only in the 

following circumstances: 

a) If a payment is necessary to avoid a charge to interest under the Late Payment 

of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, and the due date for payment is before 

the next scheduled Meeting of council, where the Clerk /RFO certifies that there 

is no dispute or other reason to delay payment, provided that a list of such 

payments shall be submitted to the next appropriate meeting of the finance 

committee; 

Page 21



 

10 
 

b) An expenditure item authorised under 5.6 below (continuing contracts and 

obligations) provided that a list of such payments shall be submitted to the next 

appropriate meeting of council [or finance committee]; or 

c) fund transfers within the councils banking arrangements up to the sum of 

£50,000, provided that a list of such payments shall be submitted to the next 

appropriate meeting of the finance committee. 

5.6. For each financial year the Clerk and RFO shall draw up a list of due payments which 

arise on a regular basis as the result of a continuing contract, statutory duty, or 

obligation (such as but not exclusively) Salaries, PAYE and NI, Superannuation Fund 

and regular maintenance contracts and the like for which council ,or a duly authorised 

committee, may authorise payment for the year provided that the requirements of 

regulation 4.1 (Budgetary Controls) are adhered to, provided also that a list of such 

payments shall be submitted to the next appropriate meeting of the Finance 

Committee. 

5.7. A record of regular payments made under 5.6 above shall be drawn up and be signed 

by two members on each and every occasion when payment is authorised - thus 

controlling the risk of duplicated payments being authorised and / or made. 

5.8. In respect of grants a duly authorised committee shall approve expenditure within any 

limits set by council and in accordance with any policy statement approved by council.  

5.9. Members are subject to the Code of Conduct that has been adopted by the council 

and shall comply with the Code and Standing Orders when a decision to authorise or 

instruct payment is made in respect of a matter in which they have a disclosable 

pecuniary or other interest, unless a dispensation has been granted. 

5.10. The council will aim to rotate the duties of members in these Regulations so that 

onerous duties are shared out as evenly as possible over time. 

5.11. Any changes in the recorded details of suppliers, such as bank account records, shall 

be approved in writing by a Member. 

 

6. INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MAKING OF PAYMENTS 

 

6.1. The council will make safe and efficient arrangements for the making of its payments. 

6.2. Following authorisation under Financial Regulation 5 above, the council, a duly 

delegated committee or, if so delegated, the Clerk /RFO shall give instruction that a 

payment shall be made. 

6.3. All payments shall be effected by internet bank transfer or other instructions to the 

council's bankers, or otherwise, in accordance with a resolution of council or a duly 

delegated committee. Evidence should be retained showing which members approved 

the payment. A member who is a bank signatory, having a connection by virtue of 

Page 22



 

11 
 

family or business relationships with the beneficiary of a payment, should not, under 

normal circumstances, be a signatory to the payment in question. 

 

6.4. Cheques or orders for payment drawn on the bank account in accordance with the 

schedule as presented to council or committee shall be signed by two member[s] of 

council in accordance with a resolution instructing that payment. A member who is a 

bank signatory, having a connection by virtue of family or business relationships with 

the beneficiary of a payment, should not, under normal circumstances, be a signatory 

to the payment in question. 

6.5. To indicate agreement of the details shown on the cheque or order for payment with 

the counterfoil and the invoice or similar documentation, the signatories shall each also 

initial the cheque counterfoil if relevant. 

6.6. If thought appropriate by the council, payment for utility supplies (energy, telephone 

and water) and any National Non-Domestic Rates may be made by variable direct 

debit provided that the instructions are signed by two members and any payments are 

reported to council as made. The approval of the use of a variable direct debit shall be 

renewed by resolution of the council at least every two years. 

6.7. If thought appropriate by the council, payment for certain items may be made by BACS 

or CHAPS methods  provided that the instructions are signed, or otherwise evidenced 

by two members are retained and any payments are reported to council as made. If 

thought appropriate by the council, payment for certain items may be made by BACS 

or CHAPS methods provided that the instructions for each payment are signed, or 

otherwise evidenced, by two authorised bank signatories, are retained and any 

payments are reported to council as made. The approval of the use of BACS or 

CHAPS shall be renewed by resolution of the council at least every two years. 

6.8. No employee or councillor shall disclose any PIN or password, relevant to the working 

of the council or its bank accounts, to any person not authorised in writing by the 

council or a duly delegated committee. 

6.9. Regular back-up copies of the records on any computer shall be made and shall be 

stored securely away from the computer in question, and preferably off site. 

6.10. The council, and any members using computers for the council’s financial business, 

shall ensure that anti-virus, anti-spyware and firewall software with automatic updates, 

together with a high level of security, is used. 

6.11. Where internet banking arrangements are made with any bank, the Clerk shall be 

appointed as the Service Administrator. The bank mandate approved by the council 

shall identify a number of councillors who will be authorised to approve transactions 

on those accounts. The bank mandate will state clearly the amounts of payments that 

can be instructed by the use of the Service Administrator alone, or by the Service 

Administrator with a stated number of approvals. 

Page 23



 

12 
 

6.12. Access to any internet banking accounts will be directly to the access page (which may 

be saved under “favourites”), and not through a search engine or e-mail link. 

Remembered or saved passwords facilities must not be used on any computer used 

for council banking work. Breach of this Regulation will be treated as a very serious 

matter under these regulations. 

6.13. Changes to account details for suppliers, which are used for internet banking may only 

be changed on written hard copy notification by the supplier and supported by hard 

copy authority for change signed by the Clerk and a Member. A programme of regular 

checks of standing data with suppliers will be followed. 

6.14. Any Debit Card issued for use will be specifically restricted to the Clerk [and will also 

be restricted to a single transaction maximum value of £1,500 unless authorised by 

council or finance committee in writing before any order is placed. On-line purchases 

for software that are in excess of £1,500, delegated officer powers should be used 

(RFO or Proper Officer) in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of Finance and 

Governance whose approval would be sought in advance. 

6.15. Any corporate credit card or trade card account opened by the council will be 

specifically restricted to use by the Clerk and any authorised employee and shall be 

subject to automatic payment in full at each month-end. Personal credit or debit cards 

of members or staff shall not be used under any circumstances. 

6.16. The RFO may provide petty cash to officers for the purpose of defraying operational 

and other expenses. Vouchers for payments made shall be forwarded to the RFO with 

a claim for reimbursement. 

a) The RFO shall maintain a petty cash float of £500 for the purpose of defraying 

operational and other expenses.  

b) Income received must not be paid into the petty cash float but must be separately 

banked, as provided elsewhere in these regulations. 

c) Payments to maintain the petty cash float shall be shown separately on the 

schedule of payments presented to council under 5.2 above. 

 

7. PAYMENT OF SALARIES 

 

7.1. As an employer, the council shall make arrangements to meet fully the statutory 

requirements placed on all employers by PAYE and National Insurance legislation. 

The payment of all salaries shall be made in accordance with payroll records and the 

rules of PAYE and National Insurance currently operating, and salary rates shall be as 

agreed by council, or duly delegated committee. 

7.2. Payment of salaries and payment of deductions from salary such as may be required 

to be made for tax, national insurance and pension contributions, or similar statutory 

or discretionary deductions must be made in accordance with the payroll records and 

Page 24



 

13 
 

on the appropriate dates stipulated in employment contracts, provided that each 

payment is reported to the next available council meeting, as set out in these 

regulations above. 

7.3. No changes shall be made to any employee’s pay, emoluments, or terms and 

conditions of employment without the prior consent of the relevant committee. 

Changes to monthly payments following payment of authorised overtime and the like 

are to be authorised by the Clerk. 

7.4. Each and every payment to employees of net salary and to the appropriate creditor of 

the statutory and discretionary deductions shall be recorded in a separate confidential 

record (confidential cash book). This confidential record is not open to inspection or 

review (under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or otherwise) other than: 

a) by any councillor who can demonstrate a need to know; 

b) by the internal auditor; 

c) by the external auditor; or 

d) by any person authorised under Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding 

legislation. 

7.5. The total of such payments in each calendar month shall be reported with all other 

payments as made as may be required under these Financial Regulations, to ensure 

that only payments due for the period have actually been paid. 

7.6. An effective system of personal performance management should be maintained for 

the senior officers. 

7.7. Any termination payments shall be supported by a clear business case and reported 

to the council. Termination payments shall only be authorised by council and/or the 

relevant committee acting under delegated powers.  

7.8. Before employing interim staff the council must consider a full business case. This 
may then be considered and approved by either a Committee or the Clerk in 
conjunction with the Chair or Vice-chair of the Council. 

 

 

8. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS 

 

8.1. All borrowings shall be effected in the name of the council, after obtaining any 

necessary borrowing approval. Any application for borrowing approval shall be 

approved by Council as to terms and purpose. The application for borrowing approval, 

and subsequent arrangements for the loan shall only be approved by full council. 

8.2. Any financial arrangement which does not require formal borrowing approval from the 

Secretary of State (such as Hire Purchase or Leasing of tangible assets) shall be 

Page 25



 

14 
 

subject to approval by the full council. In each case a report in writing shall be provided 

to council in respect of value for money for the proposed transaction. 

8.3. All loans and investments shall be negotiated in the name of the council and shall be 

for a set period in accordance with council policy. 

8.4. The council shall consider the need for an Investment Strategy and Policy which, if 

drawn up, shall be in accordance with relevant regulations, proper practices and 

guidance. Any Strategy and Policy shall be reviewed by the council at least annually. 

8.5. All investments of money under the control of the council shall be in the name of the 

council. 

8.6. All investment certificates and other documents relating thereto shall be retained in the 

custody of the RFO. 

8.7. Payments in respect of short term or long term investments, including transfers 

between bank accounts held in the same bank, or branch, shall be made in 

accordance with Regulation 5 (Authorisation of payments) and Regulation 6 

(Instructions for payments). 

 

9. INCOME 

 

9.1. The collection of all sums due to the council shall be the responsibility of and under 

the supervision of the RFO. 

9.2. Particulars of all charges to be made for work done, services rendered or goods 

supplied shall be agreed annually by the council, notified to the RFO and the RFO 

shall be responsible for the collection of all accounts due to the council. 

9.3. The council will review all fees and charges at least annually, following a report of the 

Clerk. 

9.4. Any sums found to be irrecoverable and any bad debts shall be reported to the council 

and shall be written off in the year. 

9.5. All sums received on behalf of the council shall be banked intact as directed by the 

RFO. In all cases, all receipts shall be deposited with the council's bankers with such 

frequency as the RFO considers necessary. 

9.6. The origin of each receipt shall be entered on the paying-in slip. 

9.7. Personal cheques shall not be cashed out of money held on behalf of the council. 

9.8. The RFO shall promptly complete any VAT Return that is required. Any repayment 

claim due in accordance with VAT Act 1994 section 33 shall be made at least annually 

coinciding with the financial year end. 

9.9. Where any significant sums of cash are regularly received by the council, the RFO 

shall take such steps as are agreed by the council to ensure that more than one person 

Page 26



 

15 
 

is present when the cash is counted in the first instance, that there is a reconciliation 

to some form of control such as ticket issues, and that appropriate care is taken in the 

security and safety of individuals banking such cash. 

 

 

 

10. ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES 

 

10.1. An official order or letter shall be issued for all work, goods and services unless a 

formal contract is to be prepared or an official order would be inappropriate. Copies of 

orders shall be retained. 

10.2. Order books shall be controlled by the RFO. 

10.3. All members and officers are responsible for obtaining value for money at all times. An 

officer issuing an official order shall ensure as far as reasonable and practicable that 

the best available terms are obtained in respect of each transaction, usually by 

obtaining three or more quotations or estimates from appropriate suppliers, subject to 

any de minimis provisions in Regulation 11.1 below. 

10.4. A member may not issue an official order or make any contract on behalf of the council. 

10.5. The Clerk shall verify the lawful nature of any proposed purchase before the issue 

of any order. 

 

11. CONTRACTS 

 

11.1. Procedures as to contracts are laid down as follows: 

a. Every contract shall comply with these financial regulations, and no exceptions 

shall be made otherwise than in an emergency provided that this regulation need 

not apply to contracts which relate to items (i) to (vi) below: 

i. for the supply of gas, electricity, water, sewerage and telephone services; 

ii. for specialist services such as are provided by solicitors, accountants, 

surveyors and planning consultants; 

iii. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which consist of 

repairs to or parts for existing machinery or equipment or plant; 

iv. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which constitute 

an extension of an existing contract by the council; 

Page 27



 

16 
 

v. for additional audit work of the external auditor up to an estimated value of 

£500 (in excess of this sum the Clerk and RFO shall act after consultation with 

the Chairman and Vice Chairman of council); and 

vi. for goods or materials proposed to be purchased which are proprietary articles 

and / or are only sold at a fixed price. 

b. A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an 

estimated value in excess of £25,000 but less than the relevant thresholds 

specified by the Office of Government Commerce is subject to the “light touch” 

arrangements under Regulations 109-114 of the Public Contracts Regulations 

2015 unless it proposes to use an existing list of approved suppliers (framework 

agreement)2. 

c. Where the value of a contract is likely to exceed the threshold specified by the 

Office of Governments Commerce , the Council must consider whether the 

Public Contracts Regulations 2015 or the Utilities Regulations 2016 apply to the 

contract and, if either of those regulations apply, the Council must comply with 

procurement rules When applications are made to waive financial regulations 

relating to contracts to enable a price to be negotiated without competition the 

reason shall be embodied in a recommendation to the council. 

d. Such invitation to tender shall state the general nature of the intended contract 

and the Clerk shall obtain the necessary technical assistance to prepare a 

specification in appropriate cases. The invitation shall in addition state that 

tenders must be addressed to the Clerk in the ordinary course of post. Each 

tendering firm shall be supplied with a specifically marked envelope in which the 

tender is to be sealed and remain sealed until the prescribed date for opening 

tenders for that contract. 

e. All sealed tenders shall be opened at the same time on the prescribed date by 

the Clerk in the presence of at least one member of council. 

f. Any invitation to tender issued under this regulation shall be subject to Standing 

Orders 18d, and shall refer to the terms of the Bribery Act 2010. 

g. When it is to enter into a contract of less than £25,000 in value for the supply of 

goods or materials or for the execution of works or specialist services other than 

such goods, materials, works or specialist services as are excepted as set out in 

paragraph (a) the Clerk or RFO shall obtain 3 quotations (priced descriptions of 

the proposed supply); where the value is below £3,000 and above £100 the Clerk 

or RFO shall strive to obtain 3 estimates. Otherwise, Regulation 10.3 above shall 

apply. 

 
2 Thresholds currently applicable are: 
Public supply and public service contracts £213,477 (inclusive of VAT) 
Public works contracts £5,336,937 (inclusive of VAT) 

Page 28



 

17 
 

h. The council shall not be obliged to accept the lowest or any tender, quote or 

estimate. 

i. Should it occur that the council, or duly delegated committee, does not accept 

any tender, quote or estimate, the work is not allocated and the council requires 

further pricing, provided that the specification does not change, no person shall 

be permitted to submit a later tender, estimate or quote who was present when 

the original decision making process was being undertaken. 

 

 

12. PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION 

WORKS (PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS) 

 

12.1. Payments on account of the contract sum shall be made within the time specified in 

the contract by the RFO upon authorised certificates of the architect or other 

consultants engaged to supervise the contract (subject to any percentage withholding 

as may be agreed in the particular contract). 

12.2. Where contracts provide for payment by instalments the RFO shall maintain a record 

of all such payments. In any case where it is estimated that the total cost of work 

carried out under a contract, excluding agreed variations, will exceed the contract sum 

of 5% or more a report shall be submitted to the council. 

12.3. Any variation to a contract or addition to or omission from a contract must be approved 

by the council and Clerk to the contractor in writing, the council being informed where 

the final cost is likely to exceed the financial provision. 

  

13. STORES AND EQUIPMENT 

 

13.1. The officer in charge of each section shall be responsible for the care and custody of 

stores and equipment in that section. 

13.2. Delivery notes shall be obtained in respect of all goods received into store or otherwise 

delivered and goods must be checked as to order and quality at the time delivery is 

made. 

13.3. Stocks shall be kept at the minimum levels consistent with operational requirements. 

13.4. The RFO shall be responsible for periodic checks of stocks and stores at least 

annually. 

 

 

Page 29



 

18 
 

 

14. ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES 

 

14.1. The Clerk shall make appropriate arrangements for the custody of all title deeds and 

Land Registry Certificates of properties held by the council. The RFO shall ensure a 

record is maintained of all properties held by the council, recording the location, extent, 

plan, reference, purchase details, nature of the interest, tenancies granted, rents 

payable and purpose for which held in accordance with Accounts and Audit 

Regulations. 

14.2. No tangible moveable property shall be purchased or otherwise acquired, sold, leased 

or otherwise disposed of, without the authority of the council, together with any other 

consents required by law, save where the estimated value of any one item of tangible 

movable property does not exceed £250. 

14.3. No real property (interests in land) shall be sold, leased or otherwise disposed of 

without the authority of the council, together with any other consents required by law. 

In each case a report in writing shall be provided to council in respect of valuation and 

surveyed condition of the property (including matters such as planning permissions 

and covenants) together with a proper business case (including an adequate level of 

consultation with the electorate). 

14.4. No real property (interests in land) shall be purchased or acquired without the authority 

of the full council. In each case a report in writing shall be provided to council in respect 

of valuation and surveyed condition of the property (including matters such as planning 

permissions and covenants) together with a proper business case (including an 

adequate level of consultation with the electorate). 

14.5. Subject only to the limit set in Regulation 14.2 above, no tangible moveable property 

shall be purchased or acquired without the authority of the full council. In each case a 

report in writing shall be provided to council with a full business case. 

14.6. The RFO shall ensure that an appropriate and accurate Register of Assets and 

Investments is kept up to date. The continued existence of tangible assets shown in 

the Register shall be verified at least annually, possibly in conjunction with a health 

and safety inspection of assets. 

 

15. INSURANCE 

 

15.1. Following the annual risk assessment (per Regulation 17), the RFO shall effect all 

insurances and negotiate all claims on the council's insurers. 

15.2. The Clerk and other employees shall give prompt notification to the RFO of all new 

risks, properties or vehicles which require to be insured and of any alterations affecting 

existing insurances. 

Page 30



 

19 
 

15.3. The RFO shall keep a record of all insurances effected by the council and the property 

and risks covered thereby and annually review it. 

15.4. The RFO shall be notified of any loss liability or damage or of any event likely to lead 

to a claim, and shall report these to council at the next available meeting. 

15.5. All appropriate members and employees of the council shall be included in a suitable 

form of security or fidelity guarantee insurance which shall cover the maximum risk 

exposure as determined by the council, or duly delegated committee. 

 

16. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

16.1. The council is responsible for putting in place arrangements for the management of 

risk. The Clerk shall prepare, for approval by the council, risk management policy 

statements in respect of all activities of the council. Risk policy statements and 

consequential risk management arrangements shall be reviewed by the council at 

least annually. 

16.2. When considering any new activity, the Clerk shall prepare a draft risk assessment 

including risk management proposals for consideration and adoption by the council.  

 

17. SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 

 

17.1. It shall be the duty of the council to review the Financial Regulations of the council from 

time to time. The Clerk shall make arrangements to monitor changes in legislation or 

proper practices and shall advise the council of any requirement for a consequential 

amendment to these Financial Regulations. 

 

17.2. The council may, by resolution of the council duly notified prior to the relevant meeting 

of council, suspend any part of these Financial Regulations provided that reasons for 

the suspension are recorded and that an assessment of the risks arising has been 

drawn up and presented in advance to all members of council. 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Council 

 

Internal Audit Report 2022-23: Final 

 

 

  

 

 

Adrian Shepherd-Roberts 
 

 

For and on behalf of 

Auditing Solutions Ltd 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



  2 

 

This report has been prepared for the sole use of Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Council. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 

no responsibility or liability is accepted by Auditing Solutions Ltd to any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason 

whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 

   

Background 

 

All town and parish councils are required by statute to make arrangements for an independent 

internal audit examination of their accounting records and system of internal control and for 

the conclusions to be reported each year in the Annual Return. Auditing Solutions Ltd has 

provided this service to Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Council since 2013. 
 

This report sets out the work undertaken in relation to the 2022-23 financial year which was 

completed by the 20th October 2022 and 12th April 2023. We have again undertaken our initial 

reviews for the year remotely: we wish to thank the Clerk and the Finance Officer in assisting 

the process, providing all necessary documentation in electronic format to facilitate completion 

of our review for the year to date. We have examined various aspects of the Council 

management and administration and a sample of payments ensuring governance and financial 

controls remain effective. 

 
Internal Audit Approach  

 

In undertaking our reviews for the financial year, we have had regard to the materiality of 

transactions and their susceptibility to potential mis-recording or misrepresentation in the year-

end Statement of Accounts/Annual Return. We have employed a combination of selective 

sampling techniques (where appropriate) and 100% detailed checks in a number of key areas 

in order to gain sufficient assurance that the Council’s financial and regulatory systems and 

controls are appropriate and fit for the purposes intended. 

 

Our programme of cover has been designed to afford appropriate assurance that the Council’s 

financial systems are robust and operate in a manner to ensure effective probity of transactions 

and to afford a reasonable probability of identifying any material errors or possible abuse of 

the Council’s own and the national statutory regulatory framework. The programme is also 

designed to facilitate our completion of the ‘Annual Internal Audit Report’ in the Council’s 

Annual Return, which requires independent assurance over a number of internal control 

objectives.  

 

Overall Conclusion  

 

No significant issues have been identified during the course of the review and we are able to 

conclude that, in the areas examined, effective systems of financial control continue to operate 

and help to ensure that transactions will be reflected accurately in the year-end Annual 

Governance and Accountability Return for 2022-23. 

 

We ask that members consider the content of this report and acknowledge that the report has 

been reviewed by Council. 

 

We have completed and signed the ‘Annual Internal Audit Report’ in the year’s Annual 

Governance and Accountability Return, having concluded that, in all significant respects, the 

control objectives set out in that report were being achieved throughout the financial year to a 

standard adequate to meet the needs of the Council. 

 

  

Page 34



  3 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford 

TC: 2022-23 Final 

20-Oct-22 & 12th April 2023  Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Detailed Report 

Review of Accounting Arrangements & Bank Reconciliations 
 

Our objective here is to ensure that the accounting records are being maintained accurately and 

currently and that no anomalous entries appear in cashbooks or financial ledgers. To that end, 

we have: - 

➢ Checked and agreed the opening Trial Balance for 2022-23 to the closing Financial 

Statements for 2021-22 to ensure that all the detailed balances have been accurately 

rolled forward;  

➢ Ensured that the coding structure is appropriate for purpose and provides appropriate 

detail to assist in the preparation of the Council’s year-end Annual Return; 

➢ Checked and agreed transactions in the Council’s Unity Bank Current and Deposit 

account cashbooks to the relevant bank statements for April and September 2022 and 

March 2023; 

➢ Checked and agreed all transactions, comprising inter account transfers and other 

sundry receipts and payments on the Unity Trust bank account cashbooks to the relevant 

bank statements for the year to date; and 

➢ Checked detail on the bank reconciliations and nominal ledgers for the Current & 

Deposit accounts as at April and September 2022 and March 2023 to ensure that no 

long-standing uncleared cheques or other anomalous entries exist. 

 

Conclusions  

 

We are pleased to report that no significant issues have been identified in this area.  

 

Review of Corporate Governance 
 

Our objective here is to ensure that the Council has robust corporate governance documentation 

and processes in place; that Council and Committee (where appropriate) meetings are 

conducted in accordance with the adopted Standing Orders and that, as far as we are able to 

ascertain, no actions of a potentially unlawful nature have been or are being considered for 

implementation. We have: - 

➢ Noted previously that the Standing Orders and Finance Regulations were reviewed and 

re-adopted by the Council in May 2022 and 2021 respectively; and  

➢ Examined the Council’s minutes for the current year to date to determine whether or 

not any issues exist that may have an adverse effect, through litigation or other causes, 

on the Council’s future financial stability. 

 

Conclusions  

 

We are pleased to report that no significant issues have been identified in this area.  

 

 

 

Page 35



  4 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford 

TC: 2022-23 Final 

20-Oct-22 & 12th April 2023  Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Review of Expenditure 
 

Our aim here is to ensure that: -  

➢ Council resources are released in accordance with the Council’s approved procedures 

and budgets; 

➢ Payments are supported by appropriate documentation, either in the form of an original 

trade invoice or other appropriate form of document confirming the payment as due 

and/or an acknowledgement of receipt, where no other form of invoice is available; 

➢ All discounts due on goods and services supplied are identified and appropriate action 

taken to secure the discount; 

➢ The correct expense codes have been applied to invoices when processed; 

➢ All payments have been reported to Council; and 

➢ VAT has been appropriately identified and continues to be reclaimed quarterly. 

 

We have selected a sample of payments for examination to ensure compliance with the above 

criteria from the Current Account cashbook transactions, excluding salary related payments, 

irrespective of value processed in the year to March 2023. 

 

We are pleased to note that members are provided routinely with and approve a schedule of 

payments, including detail of petrol card purchases and Direct Debits, together with monthly 

bank reconciliation detail, also that the Council’s cheque signatories sign the schedule of 

cheques presented for payment as confirmation that they have reviewed and agreed the content 

to the supporting invoices, etc. 

 

Finally, in this area, we have examined the content of the VAT reclaims submitted to HMRC 

for the year to March 2023 agreeing the returns to the underlying control account detail. 

Conclusions 

 

We are pleased to record that no significant issues have been identified in this area of review. 

 

Assessment and Management of Risk 
 

Our aim here is to ensure that the Council has put in place appropriate arrangements to identify 

all potential areas of risk of both a financial and health and safety nature, whilst also ensuring 

that appropriate arrangements exist to monitor and manage those risks identified in order to 

minimise the opportunity for their coming to fruition.  

➢ We note that the Financial Risk Assessment programme was reviewed and adopted by 

the Council in September 2021 and will again be formally approved for this financial 

year;  

➢ We also note that the Council has contracted with Ellis Whittam as a provider for both 

Health & Safety and Human Resources support.; and 

➢ We have examined the current year’s insurance with the Zurich noting that Employer’s 

and Public Liability cover are each in place at £10 million, with Fidelity Guarantee 

cover at £2 million. 

Page 36



  5 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford 

TC: 2022-23 Final 

20-Oct-22 & 12th April 2023  Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Conclusions 

No issues have arisen in this area warranting formal comment or recommendation with 

appropriate insurance cover in place.   

 

Precept Determination and Budget Control 
 

We aim in this area of our work to ensure that the Council has appropriate procedures in place 

to determine its future financial requirements leading to the adoption of an approved budget 

and formal determination of the amount to be precepted on Milton Keynes Council, that 

effective arrangements are in place to monitor budgetary performance throughout the financial 

year and that the Council has identified and retains appropriate reserve funds to meet future 

spending plans.  

 

We note that the Council, at its 24th January 2023 meeting, approved a precept of 

£1,109,705.31. 

 

We are also pleased to note that members continue to receive regular budget monitoring reports 

with over/under-spends and the level of earmarked reserves the subject of regular review.  

 

Conclusions 

 

No issues have been identified in this area warranting formal comment or recommendation. 

 

Review of Income 
 

In considering the Council’s income streams, we aim to ensure that robust systems are in place 

to ensure the identification of all income due to the Council from its various sources, to ensure 

that the income is invoiced in a timely manner and that effective procedures are in place to 

pursue recovery of any outstanding monies due to the Council. We have; 

➢ At this interim review, we have reviewed the cash book and nominal ledger entries in 

respect of the market; 

➢ Reviewed the collection of rentals, the management controls and the subsequent 

banking of fees;  

➢ Also noted that members had reviewed the fees and the method of calculation for the 

market for 2021-22 and will again review them for 2022-23; and 

➢ Ensured that the ledger controls are operating satisfactorily.  

 

Conclusions 

 

There are no issues arising from our examination of the operational controls and reviews 

undertaken in this area. No matters have arisen in this area of our review for the year.   

 

Petty Cash Account 
 

We note that the Council continues to operate a limited petty cash account in the administration 

office and at Spotlight.  

Page 37



  6 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford 

TC: 2022-23 Final 

20-Oct-22 & 12th April 2023  Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

 

We note that a payment card is now being used and we have completed a sample check of the 

cash book entries. We have also checked a sample of the petrol card payments through the 

cashbook. 

 

We have not physically checked the cash but have reviewed the holding from the information 

that we have been provided and we consider that it continues to operate effectively. As we are 

working remotely, we suggest that where possible an independent check is undertaken to 

confirm that the cash has been checked and the account balances. This should be minuted 

accordingly. 

 

Conclusions 

 

No matters arise in this area warranting formal comment or recommendation.  

 

Salaries and Wages 
 

In examining the Council’s payroll function, we aim to confirm that extant legislation is being 

appropriately observed as regards adherence to the Employee Rights Act 1998 and the 

requirements of HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) legislation as regards the deduction and 

payment over of income tax and NI contributions, together with meeting the requirements of 

the local government pension scheme, as further revised from 1st April 2021 in relation to 

employee percentage bandings; we have 

➢ Ensured that the Council reviews and approves pay scales for staff annually; 

➢ Agreed the gross salary payment to each individual on the payroll as compiled by Payroll 

Options for September 2022 by reference to the Council’s approved pay scales. Also 

verifying that the net payments corresponded to the salary return settlement statement for 

the month; and 

➢ Checked to ensure that the correct Tax codes, National Insurance tables and LGPS salary 

banding pension rates have been accurately applied and that the deductions arising 

therefrom have been paid over to the respective agencies in a timely manner.  

➢ Noted the revised 2022-23 NJC pay scales which had been implemented in accordance with 

the council’s contractual obligations. Back pay due from 1 April 2022 had been included 

in the November payroll. 

 

Conclusions 

 

No significant matters arise warranting formal comment or recommendation. 

 

Fixed Asset Registers  
 

The Governance and Accountability Manual requires all councils to maintain a record of all 

assets owned. We have checked and agreed the principles used in the detail, as recorded in the 

Council’s Asset Register, noting that it has been prepared using purchase cost values or where 

that value is unknown at the previous year’s Return level or uplifted or decreased to reflect the 

acquisition or disposal of assets. 

 

 

Page 38



  7 

 

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford 

TC: 2022-23 Final 

20-Oct-22 & 12th April 2023  Auditing Solutions Ltd 

 

Conclusion 

 

No issues require formal comment or recommendation. 

 
Investments and Loans 
 

The Council has no investments requiring separate disclosure, any “surplus” funds being held 

are deposit accounts with Unity Trust Bank: we have, as noted above, verified detail of 

transactions for the year to date from bank statements to the cash books. We have also reviewed 

the deposit held with the CCLA.  

 

The Council has no loans in place, either repayable by or to it. 

 

Conclusions  

 

No matters arise in this area of our review for the year.   

 

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations required that all Councils prepare a detailed Statement of 

Accounts, together with supporting statements identifying other aspects of the Council’s 

financial affairs.  

 

We have examined the Council’s procedures in relation to the preparation of the year-end 

detailed Annual Governance and Accountability Return data, also reviewing the arrangements 

for the identification of year-end debtors and creditors with no issues arising. 

 

 Conclusions  

 

No issues have arisen in this review area and, on the basis of work undertaken during the 

year, we have duly signed off the Internal Audit Report of the Annual Governance and 

Accountability Return, assigning positive assurances in each relevant area. 

 

 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

Agenda Item 8



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS AND PUBLICATION 
OF UNAUDITED ANNUAL GOVERNANCE & 

ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 Sections 26 and 27  
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/234) 

NOTICE 
 
 
1. Date of announcement 25 April 2023 

2. Each year the smaller authority’s Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR) needs to be 
reviewed by an external auditor appointed by Smaller Authorities’ Audit Appointments Ltd.  The unaudited 
AGAR has been published with this notice. As it has yet to be reviewed by the appointed auditor, it is 
subject to change as a result of that review.  
Any person interested has the right to inspect and make copies of the accounting records for the financial 
year to which the audit relates and all books, deeds, contracts, bills, vouchers, receipts and other 
documents relating to those records must be made available for inspection by any person interested. For 
the year ended 31 March 2023, these documents will be available on reasonable notice by application to: 
 

Delia Shephard (Town Clerk) 
Sycamore House 
Drayton Road 
Bletchley MK2 3RR 

01908 639469 clerk@bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk 
 
commencing on Monday 12 June 2023 

 
 

and ending on Friday 23 July 2023 
 

3. Local government electors and their representatives also have: 
 

• The opportunity to question the appointed auditor about the accounting records; and 

• The right to make an objection which concerns a matter in respect of which the appointed auditor could 
either make a public interest report or apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
unlawful. Written notice of an objection must first be given to the auditor and a copy sent to the smaller 
authority. 
 

The appointed auditor can be contacted at the address in paragraph 4 below for this purpose between the 
above dates only. 
 

4. The smaller authority’s AGAR is subject to review by the appointed auditor under the provisions of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the NAO’s Code 
of Audit Practice 2015.  The appointed auditor is: 

 
PKF Littlejohn LLP (Ref: SBA Team) 
15 Westferry Circus 
Canary Wharf 
London E14 4HD 
(sba@pkf-l.com) 
 

5. This announcement is made by (e) Alison Brown RFO 
 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9

mailto:clerk@bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk
mailto:sba@pkf-l.com


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49

Agenda Item 10



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77

Agenda Item 11



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council Delivery Plan 2023-24 - Draft 

This table shows the abbreviations used in the draft delivery plan attached.  Please note that the draft is incomplete and 
councillors are being asked to approve the project/actions in the plan.  A fully completed plan will be provided at the 
annual meeting of council in May 2023.  
    
Strategic priorities Governance Officer Lead Progress 
1 - cleaner and greener Council - Bletchley and Fenny 

Stratford Full Council 
TC - Town Clerk On track 

2 - proud of our past and our 
future 

NSPG - Bletchley and Fenny 
Stratford Neighbourhood Plan 
Steering Group 

SSM -  Support 
Service Manager 

Needs work 

3- Robust with resources E&PC - Environment and Planning 
Committee 

RFO - Responsible 
Financial 
Officer/Finance 
Manager 

Urgent work 
needed 

4 - Closer to our community MKCC - Milton Keynes City 
Council 

EPM - 
Environment and 
Premises Manager 

Completed 
for year 

Key Town Deal - Bletchley and Fenny 
Stratford Town Deal 

MT - Management 
Team 

  

6 - Making things happen F&GC - Finance and Governance 
Committee 

    

 
CC - Community Committee 

  

 
EPC - Employment Policy 
Committee 

  

 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



 

 

Background 

An objective in the Town Council’s 2022-23 delivery plan was to amalgamate all the council’s policy 
documents into a single “constitution” document which would gather together the statutory governance 
documents the council is legally required to publish  as well as policies which represent best practice. 
There is no legal requirement to do this as policy documents can be presented separately (as at 
present). 

Agenda Item  Town Council Constitution 

Council/Committee Full Council 

Meeting Date 25.4.2023 

 

Report Writer  Delia Shephard 

Purpose of report i To update members on accessibility and transparency of council 
policies/constitution and the way this information is currently presented.  
To update committee structure and scheme of delegations in advance 
of the Annual Meeting of council on 23 May 2023 

ii To provide updated version of committee structure and scheme of 
delegations for discussion before annual meeting should any changes 
be thought necessary 

Strategic Priorities Closer to our community 

Budget Codes and 
Costs 

106 – democratic services 

501 – staff  

Environmental 
Implications 

None 

Community Safety 
Implications 

None 

Equality/Inclusion 
Implications 

Accessibility issues must be considered when providing information to the 
community 

 

Other legal 
implications 

The council must comply with the government’s Transparency Code for 
Smaller Authorities (2014)  alongside the requirements of the Freedom of 
Information Act and related legislation pertaining to the council’s duty to be 
transparent and encourage democratic accountability. 

Supporting 
Documentation (if 
any) 

See link in body of report. 

Revised committee structure and scheme of delegations 

Page 113

Agenda Item 13



 

 

The advantages of having all the documents in one place  are: 

• transparency benefits and improved accessibility for the public 

• ease of updating policies  

• constitution doubles as a handbook for new councillors and staff members 

Current Position 
Due to staff capacity considerations the council has not met this objective during 2022-23 and staff are 
currently continuing to experience heavy workloads. The council’s Modern Gov package includes a 
constitution module which could be used to present the council’s policies in an easy and accessible 
format on the town council’s website.  This would take some staff time to implement though it could be 
introduced during 2023-24.   

Examples of a Mod.Gov constitution can be found on Milton Keynes City Council’s website at 
https://milton-keynes.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=491&MId=6737&Ver=4&Info=1 

though obviously the town council’s constitution would be much simpler and shorter.  
 
Current policies can be seen on the town council website at  
https://www.bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk/information-and-policies 
 
 
Financial Implications 
Staff time in initial introduction and training on the Mod Gov constitution module and undertaking 
review and reformatting of  all existing policies and writing content for website to improve information 
provided about how the town council works.  
 

Officer Recommendation that staff time is allocated to this project and the objective is retained in the 
delivery plan for 2023-24 as use of the module will save staff time and improve record keeping in the 
future as well as increasing transparency for the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       
      

Page 114

https://milton-keynes.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=491&MId=6737&Ver=4&Info=1
https://www.bletchleyfennystratford-tc.gov.uk/information-and-policies


         

1 
 

 
 
 

Committee Structure & Scheme of Delegations 
 

This scheme of delegation authorises standing committees and sub-committees of the council and the proper officer and the responsible financial officer to act 
with delegated authority in the specific circumstances prescribed. The scheme should be read in conjunction with the council’s standing orders, financial 
regulations and other relevant documents contained in the council’s constitution/list of policies.  
 
 
 
 

Version:  
2023-24 V1 

Status:  
Draft 

Adoption:  
May 2023 

Review date: 
April 2024 

 
 

P
age 115



         

2 
 

Summary of Council Structure 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council has adopted an internal structure which allows committees of the council to undertake specified work and 
decision-making on behalf of the full council. The specific responsibilities of each committee are laid out in this document in the relevant terms of reference. 
Additionally, individual officers also have delegated powers which are also laid out below. The scheme of delegations includes the duties which the council 
must perform. However the scheme also includes delegated authority for powers which the council may or may not choose to use from year to year.  
 
Standing Committees 
Standing committees have delegated decision making powers in respect of matters specifically delegated to them. These powers must be exercised in 
accordance with the law, the council’s standing orders and financial regulations and any approved policy framework and budget. 

The council may at any time, following resolution, revoke any delegated authority. 

Committees may decide not to exercise delegated responsibilities and may instead make a recommendation to the full council. Similarly, where a committee 
has no delegated power to make a decision it may make a recommendation to council.  

The minutes of each standing committee will be reported to and noted by the full council at the next meeting of the council. 

Sub-committees 
Sub-committees have no delegated financial powers at the present time. Sub-committees may make recommendations to their parent committee on matters 
which fall within their terms of reference and parent committees may delegate specific issues to them.  

Full council, committee and sub-committee meetings are supported by the attendance of officers of the council and are conducted in public in accordance with 
the relevant legislation and standing orders. These meetings cannot proceed unless they are quorate. Sub-committee minutes will be reported to and received 
by the parent committee at the next meeting of the parent committee where recommendations will be considered. 

Working Groups  
All committees have the power to create and appoint members to informal “working groups” or “task and finish” groups which by law can have no delegated 
executive powers and which report their findings to the body which created them for decisions. Working groups will be supported by officers as far as other 
council priorities and workloads allow. Working group meetings are not held in public and there is no formal quorum. Officers supporting working groups will 
produce notes not formal minutes. 
 
Officers 
The role of officers is to advise the council and to implement its decisions. Key officers are delegated to make specified decisions on behalf of the council. 
 
Councillors 
Councillors have no individual decision-making powers on behalf of the council. 

P
age 116



         

3 
 

 

Full Council
21 members

Quorum 7
Officer: Clerk

Community Committee
10 members

Quorum 4
Officer: SSM

Events Working 
Group

Employment Policy 
Committee
5 members
Quorum 3

Officer: Clerk

Clerk Performance 
Management Sub-

committee
  3 members

Quorum 3
Officer: Clerk 

Environment and Planning 
Committee

10 members
Quorum 4

Officer: EPM

Climate Crisis 
Working Group

Finance and Governance 
Committee

 10 members
Quorum  4

Officer: RFO

Appeals Committee
5 members
Quorum 3

Officer: depends on 
issue

Neighbourhood Plan
 Steering Group
(not a council 
committee)

P
age 117



         

4 
 

 
 
NB Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group is an independent body with its own Terms of Reference.  
 
 
Summary of Town Council responsibilities which cannot be delegated 
The following matters are reserved to the Council for decision, notwithstanding that appropriate committee(s) may make recommendations for the Council’s 
consideration. 

i Approval of the annual budget 

ii Setting the precept 

iii Borrowing money  

iv Approving the council’s annual accounts  

v Authorising any expenditure over £20,000 

vi Making, amending or revoking Standing Orders, Financial Regulations or this Scheme of Delegation 

vii Making, amending or revoking by-laws 

viii Making of orders under any statutory powers 

ix Matters of principle or policy 

x Nomination and appointment of representatives of the Council to any other authority, organisation or body (excepting approved conferences or 

meetings).  

xi Any proposed new undertakings 

xii Prosecution or defence in a court of law 

xiii Nomination or appointment of representatives of the Council at any inquiry on matters affecting the Town, excluding those matters specific to a 

committee 

xiv Creation or dissolution of standing committees and sub committees 

xv Adopting or revising the council’s code of conduct 

xvi Confirming (by resolution) that it has satisfied the statutory criteria to exercise the general power of competence 

 

P
age 118



         

5 
 

Detailed Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers of Council  
 

 
Terms of Reference: Full Council 

 
21 Members of the Council 
 

Quorum = 7 

Meetings are held every second month starting from the Annual Meeting which is held in May. 
 

The Town Council has full authority for all functions, duties and responsibility, but may delegate certain decisions to a committee, sub-committee or to an officer. It cannot legally 
delegate such decisions to an individual councillor.  

Certain decisions are reserved to Council either by legislation or the choice of the Council. 
  

Function of the Council Delegation of Function 
General Governance 
Adoption and amendment of any strategies and policies. 
 

None, but to receive advice from committees as appropriate. 
Human Resources policies & Pensions Discretions Policy delegated to Employment 
Policy Committee 
 

Comments on Milton Keynes Council’s Strategic plans, community plans or strategies 
 

None but to receive advice from relevant committee 

Comments on strategic plans and strategies of other public sector bodies, at national, 
regional or sub-regional level. 

Reserved for Council unless within terms of reference of a specific committee. 
• Planning as set out in committee TOR. 
 

Endorsement of plans or strategic documents produced by the community or partner 
organisations, including principal council. 
 

None, reserved for Council 

Consulting with the Police and other outside bodies on matters pertaining to the Town 
 

To individual committees within their terms of reference. 
 

Approval or amendment of Neighbourhood Plan 
 

None 
• Production of Neighbourhood Plan delegated to Community Partnership 

(Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group) 
 

Adopting and changing the Constitution, Standing Orders, any Standing Orders for 
Contracts, Financial Regulations or Delivery Plan 
 

None 
 

Approval of annual budget, Precept, and Medium-Term Financial Plan 
 

None, but to receive advice from Finance & Governance Committee 
 

Any delegated decision which may mean a breach of Council Policy or Budget outside 
virement rules 

None, but to receive advice from Finance & Governance Committee re budget. 
 

P
age 119



         

6 
 

 
Election of the Chair, appointment of Vice Chair, and appointment of Chairs of 
committees and sub-committees established by Council. 
 

None 
 

Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees, deciding on their 
delegation limits, composition and making appointments to them. 
 

None 
 

Appointment of Members or Officers to outside bodies. 
Members reporting back from outside bodies 
 

None 
• Relevant Committee 

Adopting an allowance scheme for Chairman or other members. None 
 

Changing the name of the Town Council. 
 

None 
 

Deciding on honorary titles or awards such as outstanding service. 
 

None 
• Judging of Community Pride awards delegated to panel elected by Council 

Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting Bylaws None 
 

Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting Bylaws. None 
 

To represent the view of the local community on matters of significance. 
 

None 
 

Power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of fault or 
maladministration. 
 

Finance & Governance Committee up to £5,000 
Appeals Committee up to £500 
Town Clerk up to £250 
 

Appeals against any decision made on behalf of the Authority 
 

As set out in complaints procedures, employment policies and Appeals Committee terms 
of reference 
 

Decisions on issues relating to Data Protection, Access to Information, Freedom of 
Information & Human Rights. 
 

• Town Clerk to renew Data Protection Registration and make amendments if 
necessary 

• Town Clerk to repones to requests from the public and matters raised by the 
Information Commissioner, taking advice from the Data Protection Compliance 
Officer as necessary. 

• Council or Finance & Governance Committee will determine refusal of 
information for vexatious reasons 

To monitor the Council’s ethical framework • Town Clerk to obtain register of interests forms and give annual reminder to 
Members and to act for the Monitoring Officer as necessary 

• Granting of dispensations is reserved to Council and delegated to the Town 
Clerk where a decision is required in advance of a committee meeting when no 
Council meeting is to take place 

P
age 120



         

7 
 

 
To institute or defend legal proceedings including proceedings for an injunction, to 
authorise the conducting of works in default of a notice, and to lodge an appeal against 
any Court decision. 
 

None generally but in cases of urgency the Clerk on consultation with two of the Chair, 
Vice-Chair or another Committee Chair 
 

All powers of the Council in the case of a civil emergency 
 

The Town Clerk in consultation with two of the Chair, Vice-chair or f another committee 
Chair subject to reporting justification to next Council meeting up to £5,000 expenditure 
outside approved budget 
 

All powers of the Council in the case of urgency The Town Clerk in consultation with two of the Chair, Vice-chair or another committee 
Chair (subject to reporting justification to next Council meeting) up to £5000 expenditure 
outside approved budget 

Election issues and filling of vacancies, including co-option of councillors 
 

None 

Power to direct as to the custody of town documents 
 

None 

All duties of the Proper Officer under legislation, standing orders, financial regulations or 
regulations for contracts including issue of notifications and signing of documents 
 

Town Clerk or in their absence the nominated deputy to have authority after seeking 
relevant advice if necessary  

All duties of the Responsible Financial Officer under legislation, standing orders 
financial regulations or any regulations for contracts including issue of notifications and 
signing documents 

Finance Manager and Town Clerk to deputise 

To do anything calculated to facilitate or conducive or incidental to the discharge of any 
function 

Council unless specifically delegated to a committee 

Human Resources 
To direct which postholders will be designated Proper Officer and Responsible Financial 
Officer and Data Compliance Officer 

None – but on recommendation of Employment Policy Committee 

To determine overall staffing structure and approval of additional posts None – none but on recommendation of Employment Policy Committee 
Confirming the appointment of the Town Clerk  Interviewing is delegated to the Employment Policy Committee (or panel of) and the Chair 

of Council. 
Other personnel matters As set out in the terms of reference of the Employment Policy Committee. 
Health and Safety Policy – General Statement None 

• Organisation and arrangements to Employment Policy Committee 
Quality and Integrated Management 
Matters relating to quality and integrated management and the Local Council Award 
Scheme 

• Finance & Governance Committee oversees the processes 
• Resolutions regarding Local Council Awards reserved to Council 
• Town Clerk to manage 

 
Administration of complaints procedure As set out in complaints procedure and terms of reference for Appeals Committee 
Customer care and equality in service delivery and access None but on advice of relevant committees 
Delegated Services 

P
age 121



         

8 
 

To take on services from other local authorities or public bodies (LGA 1972 S101,111 & 
112 or Localism Act 2011) 

None 
• Service overview to specific committees 
• Town Clerk to manage operations 

To undertake services for another public body or local authority None 
Powers of all Committees 
To undertake all functions within their terms of reference. 
The committee may choose not to use its delegated power eg because of uncertainty 
as to whether the function is delegated or because of sensitivity, controversy or 
seriousness of a matter. 

• Committee 

To arrange extra meetings  • Committee 
• Town Clerk or nominated deputy in consultation with Chair or Vice-Chair 

To make spending or income recommendations to Council during the budget process • Committee 
To monitor actions on minutes of the Committee or relevant Delivery Plan actions • Committee 
To manage services for which they are responsible within an approved budget and 
policy 

• Committee 

To authorise spending/issue works orders within budgets delegated to a committee up 
to £20,000 

• Committee up to £20,000 
• Town Clerk up to £3,000 

To contribute to the Annual Report and other publicity materials relation to the 
responsibilities of the committee  

• Committee 
• Town Clerk 

 
To appoint to sub-committees including chair of sub-committee • Committee 
Land 
Power to acquire by agreement, to appropriate to dispose of – Local Government Act 
1972 S124, 126, 127 

None 

Power to accept gifts of land – LGA 1972 S139 None 
Power to acquire land for open spaces - Public Health Act 1875 s164; Open Spaces Act 
1906 S9 and 10 

None for acquisition 
• Relevant committee for management and maintenance in accordance with terms 

of reference 
Finance and audit 
Authorisation of payment of accounts • Council/Finance and Governance Committee/other committees/Town Clerk/RFO 

in accordance with regulations 
Approval of annual return and statement of accounts (AGAR) None 
Power to approve capital projects on recommendation from standing committees within 
or without budget 

Council only if not approved in principle 
• Relevant committee if within policy and budget and to implement 

Approval of banking arrangements and selecting insurers None 
Approval of orders for work, goods or services • Council/committees/Town Clerk/RFO in accordance with Financial Regulations 

or delegation to committees 
Audit arrangements • Town Clerk/RFO to manage in accordance with financial regulations 

Council to approve annual external audit report, internal audit reports and to agree 
responses 

• Finance & Governance Committee to consider and action interim internal audit 
reports and to make know any internal audit matters which require consideration 

Council to appoint external auditor 

P
age 122



         

9 
 

Council to appoint internal auditor 
Power to accept gifts, Local Government Act 1972 S139 None 
Power to participate in schemes of collective investment, Trustees Investments Act 
1962, S11 

None 

Power to borrow – Local Government Act 1972 S111 and Sch 13 None 
Writing off bad debts Council or Finance & Governance Committee in accordance with Standing orders or 

Financial Regulations 
Proceedings or other steps to recover debt owing to the Council  Town Clerk or RFO 
Planning and Development Control 
To make observations on major or controversial planning applications referred to it by 
another committee  

None 

To make observations on Planning consultation documents from the Milton Keynes 
council or other bodies. 

None for local plan but to receive recommendations from other committees where 
appropriate 

All other Planning and Building Control matters. 
 

• Planning & Environment Committee and other committees in accordance with their 
terms of reference 

 
Housing 
Policy of the Town Council None 
All other housing matters  None 
Emergency Planning 
To prepare an Emergency Plan for the Town which supports that of Milton Keynes 
Council and the Buckinghamshire Resilience Forum 

Council (for approval) 
• Operational management by Town Clerk 

Young People 
Support public & community services and facilities for the young and support young 
people in their communities. 
 

•   Community Committee for  
  management overview. 
Town Clerk for operational management 

Co-ordinate the involvement of young people in decision making and governance 
 

None 

Community Engagement 
To promote the social wellbeing of the Town • Community Committee for management overview. 

•  Town Clerk for Operational management 
To facilitate and support local community and voluntary organisations. 
 

• Community Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for Operational management 
 

To support Citizens Advice for the Town, Local Government Act 1972, s 142 
 

• Community Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To promote social inclusion within communities. 
 

• Community Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 

To provide website and publish information about the council its services and the 
services provided in the council’s area by other local authorities, government 

• Community Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 
 

P
age 123



         

10 
 

departments, charities and other voluntary organisations (Local Government Act 1972 
S142) 
Civic Functions 
To administer and oversee civic functions and events of the Town Council in 
consultation with other committees where appropriate 

• Community Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To administer the office of the Chairman • Finance and Governance Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To maintain, repair and protect war memorial (War Memorials (Local Authorities’ 
Powers) Act 1923 

• Finance and Governance Committee for management overview. 
•  Town Clerk for operational management 
 

 
NB. Any actions delegated to the Town Clerk/Proper Officer may in their absence be undertaken by the nominated Deputy, after seeking advice if appropriate, if the matter cannot 
wait until the Town Clerk’s return 
 
Definition of “Management Overview”: To recommend policy and new initiatives to Council, decide on service expansions and contractions or options within budget and policy and 
to ensure service objectives and relevant policies are adhered to.  
 
Definition of “Operational Management” That part of the service which is considered necessary in the delivery of an initiative or service which is within Policy and Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 124



         

11 
 

Summary of Committee Responsibilities 
 
Community Committee Employment Policy 

Committee 
Environment & Planning 
Committee 
 

Finance & Governance 
Committee 

Appeals 
Committee 

Contribute to the development and 
implementation of the Council’s 
policies, strategies and business 
plans 

Contribute to the development and 
implementation of the Council’s 
policies, strategies and business 
plans 

Contribute to the development and 
implementation of the Council’s 
policies, strategies and business 
plans 

Contribute to the development 
and implementation of the 
Council’s policies, strategies and 
business plans 

Determine any 
appeals under the 
Council’s 
Complaint 
Procedure which 
is delegated to 
this Committee 

To work in partnership with other 
Councils, agencies and groups to 
encourage and secure an improved 
level of community engagement and 
develop initiatives which support the 
community the economy and social 
infrastructure of Bletchley and 
Fenny Stratford 

Oversee the implementation of the 
Town Council’s approved 
arrangements for employment and 
management of staff 

Consider and comment on all 
environmental matters and work in 
partnership the other agencies and 
groups to secure improvements in 
the physical environment 

Oversee management of the 
council’s finances  

Hold appeal 
hearings under 
the Town 
Council’s Human 
Resources 
policies if 
delegated to this 
Committee 

Consider any matters relating to the 
education, health and well-being of 
the community and oversee 
management of approved well-
being services 

Oversee the Council’s health and 
safety at work responsibilities in 
relation to employees and 
councillors 

Consider and comment on all 
matters relating to planning policy 
and individual planning applications  

Oversee Council’s risk 
management procedures, 
insurance arrangements and 
banking 

 

Oversee the management/use of 
Town Council community buildings  

Authorise expenditure of up to 
£20,000 within budget allocated to 
committee 

To oversee the management and 
maintenance of allotments, 
community orchard, football pitches 
and any other outdoor spaces for 
which the council has a 
responsibility or a designated 
interest. 
 

Oversee the maintenance of all 
the Town Council’s Town Council 
buildings and leases and provide 
recommendations to full council 
on acquisition and disposal of 
assets 

 

Approve and oversee the 
management of an annual 
programme of community events 

 Consider and comment on all 
Highways matters and contribute 
towards improving local transport 
infrastructure 

Oversee the Council’s agreed 
corporate governance 
arrangements 

 

Consider and award (within an 
approved budget) financial grants to 
local organisations 

  

To oversee the Council’s approved 
community engagement strategy 
and action plans 

 

To oversee the management of the 
Town Council’s Street furniture and 
fittings, including dog bins, seats 
etc. 

Consider any other matter falling 
outside the remit of the Council’s 
other standing committees 

 

P
age 125



         

12 
 

Assemble and submit annual 
estimates to the Finance & 
Governance Committee 

 Assemble and submit annual 
estimates to the Finance & 
Governance Committee  

Assemble and submit annual 
budget estimate in accordance 
with policy and agreed financial 
plan 

 

Authorise expenditure of up to 
£20,000 within budget allocated to 
committee 

Authorise expenditure of up to 
£20,000 within budget allocated to 
committee 

Authorise expenditure of up to 
£20,000 within budget allocated to 
committee 

Authorise expenditure of up to 
£20,000 within budget allocated to 
committee 

 

Consider planning applications 
which cannot be considered at 
Environment and Planning 
Committee, Town Council or dealt 
with by officers due to the time 
constraints of the planning cycle 

  Consider planning applications 
which cannot be considered at 
Environment and Planning 
Committee, Town Council or dealt 
with by officers due to the time 
constraints of the planning cycle 

 

 
 
Detailed Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers of Committees 
 
NB. Any actions delegated to the Proper Officer/RFO  may in their absence be undertaken by the nominated Deputy, after seeking advice if appropriate, if the 
matter cannot wait until the Town Clerk’s return 
 
Definition of “Management Overview”: to recommend policy and new initiatives to Council, decide on service expansions and contractions or options within budget 
and policy and to ensure service objectives and relevant policies are adhered to. Definition of “Operational Management”: that part of the service which is 
considered necessary in the delivery of an initiative or service which is within Policy and Budget 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Community Committee  

 
10 Members of the Council 
 

Quorum = 4 

Meetings are held every second month in the meeting cycle. 
 
The Community and Grants Committee is responsible for all community matters including some civic and all community events and supporting external community events. It 
had delegated powers for the administration of the Council’s approved Community Grant Scheme. It is also responsible for overseeing the Council’s community 
communications with the community and for community safety initiatives.  
 
It has delegated powers to respond to planning matters which fall outside the timetable of the Planning and Environment Committee meeting schedule. 
  

Function of the Committee Delegation of Function 
Community Engagement 
To promote the social wellbeing of the area. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

P
age 126



         

13 
 

  
To develop, facilitate, implement and update any community plan developed in 
partnership with the community to promote and improve the health, social and 
cultural wellbeing of those who live, work, study or visit within the Town. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 

To support the development and implementation of Milton Keynes Council’s 
Community Development Strategy and Strategic 
Partnership Action Plans when they benefit the Town. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for Operational Management 
• Finance & Governance Committee for grants 

 
 

To facilitate and support statutory, community, voluntary and faith sector 
organisations to deliver improvements for the area 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 
To promote social inclusion within communities 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To support, promote and lobby for public, community and wellbeing services and 
facilities within the Town. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To maximise the benefit to the Town of external funding directly or in partnership 
for matters which fall within the remit of the committee. 
 

• Committee. 
• In the case of urgency for an application, the Town Clerk in consultation with the 

Chairman and Vice Chairman of Committee. 
To develop, facilitate and implement matters related to community engagement 
and support for community assets. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 
To support a Citizens Advice service for the area and other information or advice 
services for the benefit of the community, (Local Government Act 1972, s 142). 
 

Council to determine financial contribution to new services 
• Committee to have management overview within budget and policy. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
• Committee for allocation of grants within budget 

. 
Personal Health 
To collaborate with partner organisations to improve the health of people in the 
town 
 

• Committee for management overview 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

 
To lobby for improved access to services which can contribute to health • Committee for management overview 

• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To promote healthy living through the Council’s communication channels 
 

• Committee for management overview 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 
Support the development and co-ordination of NHS services • Committee for management overview 

• Town Clerk for operational management   

P
age 127



         

14 
 

 
Young People 
Support and promote public & community services and facilities for young people. 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

 
Coordinate and facilitate the involvement of young people in the decision making 
of the Council. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget and to 
recommend policy to Council 

• Town Clerk for operational management   
Provide and coordinate services and events for young people in their   
communities 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within policy and budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

To have oversight of the Council’s involvement with outside bodies which support 
young people 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

Grant Scheme 
To administer the Council’s Community Grant Scheme in accordance with its grant 
policy and corporate strategic priorities 

Committee for management overview within Policy & Budget. 
Town Clerk for operational management 
 • Committee for approvals up to £5000. 
 • Recommend grants above £5000 to Council 
 

To advise on the formulation and amendment to Grant Policy to ensure alignment 
with Corporate Strategy. 
 

• Committee 

Projects & Events 
To approve and deliver environmental, community and economic projects and 
events 
  
 

Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
Town Clerk for operational management 

To organise, support or promote events which promote the environmental, 
community or economic well-being of the Town. 

Committee to have management overview. 
Town Clerk for Operational Management 
 

To collaborate with partners to develop a “brand” for the Town 
 

Committee to have management overview. 
Town Clerk for Operational Management 
 

To support local business associations and consult with local businesses 
regarding projects, events and communications 

Committee to have management overview. 
Town Clerk for Operational Management 

Communications/Public Relation and Marketing 

P
age 128



         

15 
 

To co-ordinate and promote access to Council services and public information and 
to advise Council on a Communications & Marketing Policy. 

• Management overview to Committee 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To prepare annual communications plan and oversee delivery  • Management overview to Committee 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To monitor social media communications, website and digital and printed 
newsletters and to provide feedback to officers 

Management overview to Committee 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

Use of Community Buildings 
Power to provide and equip community buildings, Local            Government Act 
1972, s 133 
Power to provide & equip community centres for use of clubs having athletic, 
social or recreational objectives, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 S19. 
Power to provide & encourage the use of conference facilities, Local Government 
Act 1972, S144 
Power to provide public buildings & halls. Local Government   Act 1972, S215 

NB Fabric of community buildings is managed by the Finance and Governance 
Committee or Full Council as are charges  
  

• Committee for management overview of community building use within Council 
policy & budget 

• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

To consult with users of community services provided from Town Council 
community buildings and to propose new services and policies 

Committee to make recommendations to Council or to Finance & Governance as 
appropriate.  

Community Safety  
To install & maintain CCTV equipment for detection & prevention of crime. (Local 
Government & Rating Act 1997, S31.) 

• Committee to have management overview 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To support initiatives of the Community Safety/ Crime Reduction Partnership, 
which benefit the Town. 

• Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To lobby for road safety improvement schemes • Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To consult with the Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner. • Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 

  To collaborate with the Police to maintain a presence and service in the Town 
and to support rehabilitation of offenders. 

• Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 
 

To support home safety initiatives in the town and work with Buckinghamshire and 
Milton Keynes Fire authority on fire safety initiatives. 

• Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 
 

To use the Council’s communication channels to provide information on improving 
home, fire, community, road and water safety 

• Committee to have management overview. 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 
 

Annual Estimates 
Assemble and submit annual estimates to the Finance & Governance Committee 
(Including recommendations for charges) 

• Committee 
 

P
age 129



         

16 
 

Planning and Development Control 
To make observations on all Milton Keynes Council’s Planning applications; Listed 
Building applications; Conservation Area consents; Certificates of Existing or 
Proposed Lawful Use or Development; Display of Advertisement Regulations; and 
development involving telecommunications, including prior notification 
determinations 

• Committee if planning cycle does not permit consideration at Environment & Planning 
Committee 
 • Town Clerk may respond  on behalf of the Council to the following types of applications: 
- certificates of existing or proposed lawful use or development, display of 
advertisements, development applications restricted to telecommunications, discharge of 
conditions of approved applications and prior notification determinations  provided that all 
Members of the committee are notified in advance and can ask for the matter to be 
referred to a committee with delegated planning powers  
• Committee may decide that a major or particularly controversial application be referred 
to full Council and may make recommendations for Council’s consideration  

 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Employment Policy Committee 

 
5 Members of the Council 
The Chair of the Council is an ex officio Member of the Committee 

Quorum = 3 

Meetings are held 2-3 times per year or as required.  
All non-committee members may attend meetings of the Committee except for confidential items or matters relating to grievance or discipline 
and may speak at the Chair’s discretion but are unable to vote. 
 
The Employment Policy Committee is responsible for employment policy and health and safety in the workplace and advises the Council on 
staff establishment and structure. It undertakes management overview of staff performance the operational management of which is delegated 
to the Town Clerk. 
 
  

Function of the Committee Delegation of Function 
 
To recommend to Council the overall employee structure and the approval of any 
additional posts. 

None – approval remains with Council 

To agree pay and conditions of service for staff • Town Clerk reserved for Council  
• Regrading of all other posts to Committee 
• Annual increments and payment of honoraria within agreed budget to Committee. 

To approve Human Resources policies and Employee Handbook Committee, including discretionary provisions of National Joint Agreement. 
  

Management and Appointment of Staff (Local Government Act 1972 s112-119) • Recommend appointment of Town Clerk to be endorsed by Council.  
Selection of long list and preliminary interview by Recruitment Panel from Employment 
Policy Committee +Council  

P
age 130



         

17 
 

Chairman Final Interview-Committee + Council Chairman 
 
 • Appointment of other Staff Scale Point 27 and above to Committee. 
 
 • Appointment of Staff below Scale Point 23 to Town Clerk.  
• Town Clerk for casual staff and temporary appointments to approved positions below 
Scale Point 27  
• Decision on whether to fill vacant positions is delegated to Town Clerk. 
 • Decision on recruitment of contract staff or interim contract staff to Town Clerk in 
consultation with Chair of Committee subject to identification of budget. 
 • Decision on recruitment of consultants to Committee subject to identifying budget. 
 • Recruitment of Locum or Acting Town Clerk after decision in principle by Council or 
Committee is delegated to Chairman of Council, Deputy Chair and Employment Policy   
Chair 
 • Management of staff in accordance with Council policy, procedures and budget to Town 
Clerk. 

Disciplinary matters under the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure. • Town Clerk with appeal to Employment Policy Committee  
• Employment Policy Committee in the case of the Town Clerk with appeal to Appeals 
Committee (only members not on Human Resources Committee)  
• Dismissal of Town Clerk to be ratified by Council 

Determination of individual grading issues and job evaluation • Committee, except Town Clerk reserved to Council with recommendation from 
Committee 

Issues relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme as it affects individual 
employees and administration of retirement. 

• Committee (Council in case of Town Clerk) 
 • Administration of retirement in cases of permanent ill health, after appropriate medical 
advice via Buckinghamshire Local Government Pensions to Committee  
• Pensions Discretions Policies to Committee 

Absence issues under the Council’s Attendance Management Guidelines. • Town Clerk except Committee in the case of Town Clerk 

Appeals Procedure. • Appeals Committee. 
To place staff at the disposal of other local authorities for the purpose of joint 
arrangements or Partnership working 

• Committee (Council in case of Town Clerk) 

Competence Procedure • Town Clerk except Committee in the case of Town Clerk 
 • Appeals to Appeals Committee 

Issue of Contracts of Employment • Town Clerk except Committee in the case of Town Clerk 
• Model Contract approved by Committee 

Redundancy & Redeployment. Committee (Council to ratify in case of Town Clerk) 
Training and Development • Policy to Council  

• Annual staff and member Plan to Committee 
 • Implementation to Town Clerk 

Approval of Officer Codes of Conduct, supplements & Member-Officer Protocol Council 
Health & Safety • Committee for approval of Policy other than General Statement which is reserved for 

Council • Committee to oversee responsibilities for Council within budget and policy • 
Town Clerk for routine management 

Grievance Procedure • Hearing Panel from Committee  
• Appeals to Appeals Committee. 

P
age 131



         

18 
 

Administration of other Human Resources procedures • Town Clerk except Committee in the case of Town Clerk 
Employee Development Review and assessment at end of Probationary period • Town Clerk for all staff, often delegated to direct manager. 

 • Chair of Council, Chair and one other Member of Employment Policy Committee  

Consultation and negotiation with Trade Unions 
 

• Committee (Council to ratify for Town Clerk) 

Volunteers Policy • Town Clerk to administer 
 • Committee to monitor & recommend policy to Council 

Child & Vulnerable Adult Policy • Town Clerk to administer  
• Committee to monitor & recommend to Council 

To administer the Council’s Equality Policy • Town Clerk to administer for employees, services, volunteers and democratic processes  
• Committee to monitor & recommend to Council 

First line of contact for Town Clerk. Hierarchy: 
 • Chair of Council  
• Vice Chair of Council 
 • Chair of Employment Policy Committee 

Assemble and submit annual estimates to the Finance & Governance Committee 
(Including recommendations) 
Cost Centre 501 

• Committee 
 

 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Environment & Planning Committee 

 
10 Members of the Council 
 

Quorum = 4 

Meetings are held every second month in the meeting cycle. 
 
The Environment & Committee is responsible for aspects of the built and outdoor environment within the area as well as having delegated powers to respond to planning 
matters. It is responsible for management of diverse services including allotments, public toilets, dog bins etc.  
 
All non-committee members may attend meetings of the Committee except for confidential items and speak on ward issues at the Chairman’s discretion but are unable to vote. 
 

Function of the Committee Delegation of Function 
Strategic Planning 
 Making observations on Local Plan, or Waste and Mineral Plans.  Council on the advice of Committee for Local Plan 

• Committee for Waste & Mineral Plans. 
Making observations on supplementary planning documents or non-statutory 
plans. 

• Committee 

Planning guidance and policy by the Town Council . • Committee to oversee and recommend  
Approval reserved to Council 
 

Planning and Development Control 

P
age 132



         

19 
 

To make observations on all Milton Keynes Council’s Planning applications; Listed 
Building applications; Conservation Area consents; Certificates of Existing or 
Proposed Lawful Use or Development; Display of Advertisement Regulations; and 
development involving telecommunications, including prior notification 
determinations 

• Committee 
• Committees with delegated powers to respond to planning matters (Finance & 
Governance, Community) 
 • Town Clerk may respond  on behalf of the Council to the following types of applications: 
- certificates of existing or proposed lawful use or development, display of 
advertisements, development applications restricted to telecommunications, discharge of 
conditions of approved applications and prior notification determinations  provided that all 
Members of the committee are notified in advance and can ask for the matter to be 
referred to a committee with delegated planning powers  
• Committee may decide that a major or particularly controversial application be referred 
to full Council and may make recommendations for Council’s consideration  

Referring any planning enforcement issue to the principal Council • Town Clerk 
To make observations on all planning aspects and licensing aspects of waste 
applications or mineral applications. 

• Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

To comment on Tree Preservation applications or the making of Orders. • Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

To respond to consultations from adjoining authorities outside of Milton Keynes. • Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

To make observations on Planning policy consultation documents from Milton 
Keynes Council or other bodies. 

• Committee except Local Plan which is reserved for Council 

To make observations at the time of planning appeals and to authorise witnesses 
(officers, councillors or consultants) on behalf of the Council. 

• Committee 

To make observations on Hazardous Substance applications. • Committee 
To make observations on applications for amendments to planning and other 
related consents previously granted by any authority. 

• Committee 
 

To make observations on applications for the discharge of conditions in respect of 
planning permissions and other related consents issued by Milton Keynes Council. 

• Committee 
• Town Clerk may respond on behalf of the Council    provided that all Members of the 
committee are notified in advance and can ask for the matter to be referred to a 
committee with delegated planning powers instead 
 

Making observations on applications and other actions in relation to hedgerows. • Committee 
• Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 
 

Making observations and recommendations on Street naming or numbering • Committee 
 

To consult with the Milton Keynes Council on any matter relating to building 
control. 

• Town Clerk 

To monitor proposals from developers under Section 106 Agreements or 
Community Infrastructure Levy. 

• Committee 
 

To request Milton Keynes Council or one of their Members to “call in” applications 
to be determined their Development Control Committee. 

• Committee 
 

P
age 133



         

20 
 

To undertake the Council’s role in the making, review or management of 
conservation area 

• Committee  
 

Licensing 
Making observations on any matter relating to gaming or gambling • Committee 

• Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if insufficient time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting 

Making observations on applications and other matters under the Licensing 
legislation. 

• Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if insufficient time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

 Strategic Highways & Transportation 
To take policy lead on the Local Transport Plan and general transportation issues. • Committee for Management overview & to advise Council. • Town Clerk for operational 

management 
To respond to consultation on any temporary or permanent highways changes. • Committee 

 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

Power to complain to Highway authority as to unlawful stopping up or obstruction 
of highway or unlawful encroachment on roadside land. 

• Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members if consensus view 

Consent for ending maintenance at public expense or stopping up or diversion of 
highway 

• Committee 
 • Town Clerk after consultation with Members, if there is not time for reference to 
Committee, subject to reporting the matter to the next meeting. 

Non-Strategic Highways & Transport 
Power to maintain footpaths & bridleways. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Powers to provide parking places for vehicles & cycles. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Improve off street parking & on street parking enforcement. 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to provide roadside seats & shelters • Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to enter into agreement as to dedication & widening of    highways. 
 

• Committee within budget & policy. 
 

Power to contribute financially to traffic calming Schemes. 
(Highways Act 1980, S274A.) 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to provide traffic signs and other objects or devices warning of danger. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to plant trees and lay grass verges and to maintain them 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Powers relating to car sharing schemes, taxi fare concessions & information about 
transport; Local Government & Rating Act 1997, S26, 28, 29 
 

• Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To support approved community transport schemes • Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 

P
age 134



         

21 
 

 • Town Clerk for operational management 
Power to erect flagpoles in highway land. Highways Act 1980 s 144 • Committee for management overview within Council policy & budget 

• Town Clerk for operational management 
Environment & Sustainability 
To promote the environmental wellbeing of the Town.  • Committee for management overview  

• Town Clerk for operational management 
 Conservation of the built & natural environment • Committee for management overview 

 • Town Clerk for operational management 
To lead on the sustainability of the Council as an organisation and to approve and 
action environmental audits. 
 

• Committee for management overview and to recommend Policy 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To monitor the steps which the Council needs to control its carbon footprint and 
help reduce climate change. 
 

• Committee for management overview 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To promote environmental awareness. • Committee for management overview  
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To lead the Town and partner the community in addressing climate change, 
sustainability and transition. 

• Committee for management overview and to recommend Policy 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 

Housing 
Town Council Policy or response to consultation on Milton Keynes Council’s 
Policy.  

None but Committee may provide advice 

To lobby for a suitable mix of housing and adequate affordable homes. •  Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget and to recommend 
policy to Council 
• Town Clerk for operational management  
• Planning Committee through the Planning system.  

To collaborate with partners to tackle other housing matters which may affect 
Bletchley & Fenny Stratford, including property owner supervision, design 
guidance, homelessness and rough sleeping. 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

 
Economic Wellbeing & Tourism 
To promote the economic wellbeing of the Town through          partnership with the 
businesses, the community sector and with 
the principal council. 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management  

 
 

To promote tourism within the Town and power to encourage visitors. Local 
Government Act 1972, s144. (See power to provide conference and other 
facilities- Services Committee). 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 

To promote regeneration in the Town and coordinate/support           the work of 
partner organisations. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 

P
age 135



         

22 
 

To lobby for sufficient high quality employment sites in the          Town & support 
initiatives promoting inward investment. 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 
• Planning Committee through the Planning system.  

 
 

To support skills & training for local businesses and to improve the skills of the 
unemployed. 
 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
Provision directly or indirectly of Christmas lights. Local Government Act 1972, 
s144. 

• Committee for management overview within Policy and Budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
Leisure & Recreation 
Power to maintain land for open spaces, Public Health Act 1875, S164; Open 
Spaces Act 1906, S9 &10. 
 

• Committee for management overview 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 
Power to acquire land for or to provide recreation grounds, public walks, parks, 
pleasure grounds and to manage and control them. Power to provide 
gymnasiums, playing fields, & boating pools; Local Government Act 1972, Sch. 
14; Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1890, S44, Local government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act S19; Public Health Act 1961, s54.) 
 

None for acquisition refer to Council 
• Committee for management overview & development within budget & policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 

Management and enhancement of parks, playing fields, play areas and public 
open spaces. 
 

• Committee for management overview & development within budget & policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Liaison or partnership with other organisations which have an interest in 
recreational facilities in the town. 
 

• Committee for management overview 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Public Realm and Public Facilities 
To contribute to the improvement of the public realm, both directly and by 
supporting and coordinating the contribution of other partners. 
 

• Committee for management overview within budget. 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
To manage the Ranger service to ensure a response resource which supports and 
enhances the public realm services. 
 
To manage the Landscaping service to ensure a response resource which 
supports and enhances the public realm service. 
 

• Committee for management overview  
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
 

Matters relating to street cleaning, litter, fly posting, graffiti. 
 

• Committee for management overview  
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

Fixed penalty notices for littering, graffiti & fly posting (adoptive). PSPO 
monitoring. 

• Committee for management overview within budget & policy 
• Operational Management to Town Clerk. 

P
age 136



         

23 
 

  
Dog fouling prevention and provision of dog bins  • Committee for management overview within budget & policy 

• Operational Management to Town Clerk. 
 

Provision of litter receptacles, Litter Act 1983, S5 & 6 
 

• Committee for management overview within budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
Provision and maintenance of street furniture and signs 
 

• Committee for management overview within budget 
• Town Clerk for operational management. 

 
Power to provide & maintain public conveniences, Public Health Act 1936, s87. 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within budget & policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to maintain, repair, protect & alter war Memorials; War Memorials (Local 
authorities Powers) Act 1923, S11 as extended by Local Government Act 1948 
S133. 
 

• Committee for management overview within policy and budget 
• Operational management to Town Clerk 

 

To deal with issues involving ancient monuments and areas of archaeological 
interest,  

 

• Committee for management overview within policy and budget 
• Operational management to Town Clerk 

 
To promote and support floral and planting Initiatives, Local  
 Government Act 1972. s 144   
 

• Committee for management overview within policy and budget 
• Operational management to Town Clerk 

 
Waste and recycling 
 
 

• Committee for management overview within budget & policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

 
Bus Shelters 
Power to provide & maintain bus shelters, Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1953 S4. 

• Committee for management overview within budget & policy 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
•  

Allotments and Community Orchard 
To provide allotments where there is a proven need, improve land and let rights 
under S 23, 26, &42 of the Small Holding & Allotments Act 1908. 

None for acquisition or disposal but advice to Council 

To oversee management and development of allotments and orchard • Committee for management overview & development within budget 
• Town Clerk for operational Management 
• Recommendations to Finance & Governance Committee for setting of charges 

 
Market 
To lead on Market Town initiatives. 
 

• Committee to have management overview. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 

P
age 137



         

24 
 

  
To oversee the power to operate and protect the town’s markets under the Food 
Act 1984 s50-61 or Charter Rights 
 

• Management overview to Committee within policy & budget 
• Operational management to Town Clerk 

 
Setting of all fees and charges relation to the Markets. To make recommendations to Finance & Governance Committee 

 
To maximise the benefit to the Town of external funding directly or in partnership 
for matters which fall within the remit of the committee 
 

• Committee. 
• In the case of urgency for an application, the Town Clerk in consultation with the 

Chairman and Vice Chairman of Committee. 
Environmental & Public Health 
Power to utilise well, spring or stream to provide facilities for           water supply, 
Public Health Act 1936, S125 and power to deal          with ponds & ditches, Public 
Health 1936, S260. 
 

• Committee for management overview 
• Town Clerk for operational management   

 

To consult with the relevant authorities in cases of public           health/ 
environmental nuisance, drainage matters, pollution, or 
animal welfare issues. 

• Petitions to Committee 
• Town Clerk in other cases 

 
To consult with the relevant authorities in cases of public           health/ 
environmental nuisance, drainage matters, pollution, or 
animal welfare issues. 

• Committee 
Town Clerk in consultation with Chairman in cases of urgency 

Annual Estimates 
Assemble and submit annual estimates to the Finance & Governance Committee 
(Including recommendations for charges) 

• Committee 
 

 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Finance & Governance Committee  

 
10 Members of the Council 
 

Quorum = 4 

Meetings are held every second month in the meeting cycle. 
 
All non-committee members may attend meetings of the Committee except for confidential items and speak on ward issues at the Chairman’s discretion but are unable to vote. 
 
The Finance & Governance Committee is responsible for the management and oversight of all matters relating to the council’s finances, policies and governance. It determines 
the Council’s spending priorities and recommends the annual budget to Council. 
 
It has delegated powers to respond to planning matters which fall outside the timetable of the Planning and Environment Committee meeting schedule. 

Function of the Committee Delegation of Function 
Resources 
To oversee and direct the use of financial and technological resources of the 
Council. 

• Committee for management overview 

P
age 138



         

25 
 

• Operational management to Town Clerk and RFO in accordance with financial 
regulations and standing orders. 

Governance 
To advise Council on Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and any Standing 
Orders for Contracts. 

• Committee  
•  Town Clerk to advise and implement  

To advise Council on the Constitution, Corporate Strategy and other policy 
documents not specifically allocated to other standing committees • Committee  

• Town Clerk to advise and implement 
To ensure that there is a rolling programme of policy and governance reviews in 
accordance with agreed “review” dates, 

• Town Clerk 
 

Civic Functions 
To administer the office of the Chairman • Committee for management overview within policy and budget. 

 • Town Clerk for Operational Management 
Finance 
Under the direction of Council to be responsible for the overall management and 
control of the finances of the Council. 

• Council to approve banking arrangements • Committee for managerial overview • 
RFO/Town Clerk in accordance with Financial Regulations and for operational 
management 

To monitor the Council's capital and revenue budgets • Committee/ RFO in accordance with Financial Regulations. 
Approval of variation, overspend, and virement in accordance with financial 
regulations 

• Committee, Town Clerk & RFO as set out in Financial Regulations 

To authorise payments in accordance with financial regulations • Committee, Town Clerk & RFO as set out in Financial Regulations 
Approval of Orders for work, goods or services & acceptance of tenders Council/ Committee/ RFO/Town Clerk in accordance with Financial Regulations & 

Standing Orders for Contracts.  
• Town Clerk to approve or vary lists of approved contractors subject to Financial 
Regulations or Standing Orders 

To make recommendations to the Council on Budget & Precept requirements. • Committee  
• RFO/Town Clerk to prepare draft Budget & Budget Report with accountancy support as 
necessary. 

To advise on the financial implications of proposed new policies or services 
including potential costs and sources of revenue. 

• Committee 

To advise Council on borrowing policy, investment & treasury management • Committee 
To regularly monitor the performance of all funds invested. • Committee, Town Clerk, RFO 
To supervise the Council's insurance arrangements Town Clerk/RFO for renewal & operational matters.  

• Committee for overview, tendering & changes of cover. 
To supervise the Council's banking arrangements. RFO/Town Clerk • Authorised signatories to authorise Mandate & payments in 

accordance with Financial Regulations 
To be responsible for all matters related to the full range of financial and 
accountancy functions. 

• Committee for management overview  
• RFO/Town Clerk for operational management 

Approval of all fees and charges annually • Committee to recommend with ratification from full Council. 
To consider reports on outstanding debts due to the Council and to undertake 
recovery or write off. 

• Committee for aged debt in accordance with financial regulations. 
 • RFO for routine actions to recover 

Authorisation of investments and debt repayment in accordance with the Council's 
Policy 

• Committee 

To authorise all leasing arrangements for the acquisition of vehicles, plant and 
equipment within approved budgets 

• Committee/Town Clerk in accordance with Financial Regulations 

P
age 139



         

26 
 

To approve all security of the Council in respect of information technology and 
finance 

• Committee/Town Clerk/ RFO in accordance with Financial Regulations 

Procurement 
To co-ordinate and oversee the Council’s corporate procurement and advise it on 
policy. 

• Committee for management overview  
• Town Clerk and RFO for operational management in accordance with financial 
regulations, & any standing orders for contracts & procurement policy 

Information Technology Services 
To oversee the use of information and other technology in support of the Council’s 
business and service commitments. 

▪ Management overview to Committee & to let contracts within approved budget & policy. 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

Procurement of website  ▪ Committee for new websites & contracts within budget. 
To approve all security arrangements of the Council in respect of computers and 
financial issues. 

• Committee/Town Clerk/RFO in accordance with financial regulations 

Performance Management 
To be responsible for monitoring the overall performance of the Council • Committee for management overview  

• Town Clerk for operational management. 
Approval of Corporate Business/Delivery Plan • Committee  

• Town Clerk to determine underlying action & project plans 
Approval of operating procedures • Committee for initial financial procedures 

 • Town Clerk for other procedures and updating financial procedures 
Asset Management 
To have oversight of assets and the transfers of assets • Committee 
Maintenance of the Asset Register • RFO to update at least annually 

 • Chairman to verify 
 • Committee to monitor 

Corporate property owner management, repair & maintenance, leasing & licensing 
of Council land & buildings 

Council for acquisition and disposal  
• Management overview to Committee within budget & policy 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 
 

Provision and management of office accommodation, other corporate property, 
land and relevant fixtures and fitting 

 • Management overview to Committee  
• Town Clerk for operational management 

Responsibility for energy conservation and disabled access. • Management overview to Committee 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

Power to provide & encourage the use of conference facilities, Local Government 
Act 1972, S144 
Power to provide public buildings & halls. Local Government   Act 1972, S215 
 Power to provide and equip community buildings, Local            Government Act 
1972, s 133 
Power to provide & equip community centres for use of clubs having athletic, 
social or recreational objectives, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 S19. 

• Management overview to Committee 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
 

Audit 
To receive, and formulate a response to interim internal audit reports • Committee 

 • RFO and Town Clerk to support. 

P
age 140



         

27 
 

To make recommendations to Council in respect of the appointment of the 
Council's internal auditor 

• Committee 
 • RFO and Town Clerk to support with operating procedures 

To agree any matters to be referred to internal audit for inclusion in the annual 
internal audit plan 

• Committee 

To prepare the Council’s annual business risk assessment  • Town Clerk  
• Committee to approve it and monitor recommended actions are implemented. 

To agree an annual programme of Member audit checks on financial procedures, 
other governance and operational procedures, to undertake these audits (and to 
establish subcommittees for this purpose if necessary) and to receive reports on 
those audits  

• Committee 
• Town Clerk for operational management 
Council to approve creation of any sub-committees 

Final Internal and External Audit Reports • Council to receive external audit report and final internal audit report. 
 • Committee to advise Council on response as necessary • Town Clerk/ and RFO to 
manage in accordance with Financial Regulations and to undertake all statutory actions to 
facilitate audits and returns. 

Information and Data Protection 
Policy on Data Protection, Access to Information, Freedom of Information & 
Human Rights. 

• Advice to Council 

Decisions on issues relating to Data Protection & Human Rights. • Managerial overview and monitoring to Committee as well as decisions concerning 
vexatious requests 
 • Town Clerk to renew Data Protection Registration, make amendments as necessary, 
respond to routine requests for information and matters raised by the Information 
Commissioner or Data Protection Compliance Officer. 
 • Town Clerk to update Privacy notices of all categories 

Decisions on issues relating to Access to Information, & Freedom of Information. • Managerial overview and monitoring to Committee as well as decisions concerning 
vexatious requests 
 • Town Clerk to ensure Publication Scheme and Information Guide up to date, all 
requests for information are dealt with according to legislation & policy and respond to 
matters raised by the Information Commissioner. 

Ethical Framework 
To monitor and control the Council’s ethical framework, Member Code of Conduct 
and related protocols 

• Management overview & monitoring to Committee. (For officer delegation see Council 
TOR) 

Communications/Public Relation and Marketing  
To co-ordinate and promote access to Council services and public information and 
to advise Council on a Communications & Marketing Policy 

• Management overview to Committee 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

 . To promote customer care and equality in service delivery and access  • Management overview to Committee 
 • Town Clerk for operational management 

To promote the public face of the Council through the management of public and 
media relations. 

• Management overview to Committee  
• Town Clerk for operational management 

To promote implementation of the Council's policies in respect of corporate 
marketing and communication. 

• Management overview to Committee  
• Town Clerk for operational management 

  To advise Council on adoption of a Publicity Code, Transparency Code and 
Protocol on communication 

• Committee 

Planning and Development Control 
To make observations on all Milton Keynes Council’s Planning applications; Listed 
Building applications; Conservation Area consents; Certificates of Existing or 

• Committee if planning cycle does not permit consideration at Environment & Planning 
Committee 

P
age 141



         

28 
 

Proposed Lawful Use or Development; Display of Advertisement Regulations; and 
development involving telecommunications, including prior notification 
determinations 

 • Town Clerk may respond  on behalf of the Council to the following types of applications: 
- certificates of existing or proposed lawful use or development, display of 
advertisements, development applications restricted to telecommunications, discharge of 
conditions of approved applications and prior notification determinations  provided that all 
Members of the committee are notified in advance and can ask for the matter to be 
referred to a committee with delegated planning powers  
• Committee may decide that a major or particularly controversial application be referred 
to full Council and may make recommendations for Council’s consideration  

 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Appeals Committee 

 
5 Members of the Council who are not members of the Employment Policy 
Committee  
 

Quorum = 3 

Meetings are held only as required.  
Non-committee members may not attend meetings of the Committee. 
 
The Committee is responsible for:  

• Considering and deciding whether individual appeals have established grounds for appeal, according to the Council’s policies and Procedures. 
• To gather further evidence at appeal committee hearings and to decide based on that information, whether an appeal should be upheld or rejected. 

  
Function of the Committee Delegation of Function 

Appeals 
To determine whether any appeal made by a member of staff under any of the 
Council’s Human Resources policies are valid. ·  
  

• Committee 

To hold appeal hearings under the disciplinary, grievance, competence, 
redundancy and redeployment policies ·  

• Committee to determine the appeal under the appropriate procedure. (NB. Any 
Councillor who has previously been involved in the Procedure prior to the appeal 
may not sit on the Appeal hearing.) · 

• Only Council may uphold a decision to dismiss the Town Clerk 
 

To determine any appeals under the Council’s Complaint Procedure which is 
delegated to it. ·  

• Committee to determine the appeal under the Procedure. (NB. Any Councillor 
who has previously been involved in the Procedure prior to the appeal may not 
sit on the Appeal hearing.) 

•  · Committee to make redress up to the value of £500. 
•  · Town Clerk to make redress up to value of £250 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 142



         

29 
 

 
Detailed Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers of Sub-committees of Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council 
 
 

 
Terms of Reference:  Clerk Performance Appraisal Sub-Committee  

 
3 Members of Council  
(The Chair of Council, the Chair of Employment Policy Committee and one other 
Member selected by the Employment Policy Committee). 
 

Quorum = 3 

Meetings are held 2-3 times per year or as required. Due to the nature of business non-committee members may not attend meetings of the sub-committee which makes 
reports to the Employment Policy Committee  
 
The Sub-committee is responsible for undertaking the annual performance appraisals of the Town Clerk and any other matters concerning the Town Clerk which may be 
delegated to it for consideration by the Employment Policy Committee  

 
 
 
Terms of reference for working groups 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Climate Group 

 
The purpose of the working is to ensure that Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council fully recognises the current climate emergency and implements its resolved 
commitments to respond to this through scrutinizing the Council’s activities and supporting the Council to achieve its cleaner and greener  goals  as set out in its delivery plan.   
Co-opted members shall be representatives of organisations and individuals who in the opinion of the Environment and Planning Committee shall enhance the effectiveness 
and representation of the working group.  
  

Function of the working group Delegation of function 
Climate Change  
 To work to make the civil parish of Bletchley and Fenny Stratford carbon neutral 
by 2030 

Working group to make recommendations direct to the Environment and Planning 
Committee and to all other committees of the council if relevant to assist in achievement 
of this goal 

To work to make the Town Council as carbon neutral as practical by 2030 Working group to make recommendations direct to the Environment and Planning 
Committee and to all other committees of the council if relevant to assist in achievement 
of this goal 
 

To work with Milton Keynes Council towards assisting that Council in realising the 
aspirations of making Milton Keynes the World’s Greenest City (making Milton 
Keynes carbon neutral by 2030 and carbon negative by 2050 

Working group to make recommendations direct to  the Environment and Planning 
Committee and to all other committees of the council if relevant to assist in achievement 
of this goal 

P
age 143



         

30 
 

 Town Clerk for operational management  
To support the Environment and Planning Committee to make  action plans to 
achieve the council’s climate and biodiversity goals 
 

Working group to prepare recommendations for the Environment and Planning 
Committee 

 
 
 

 
Terms of Reference: Community Events Working Group 

 
Meetings are held as required. 
.The working group reports to the Community Committee. It has no delegated decision-making powers and acts as an advisory group. 
  

Function of the working group Delegation of function 
Community Events  
To assist officers and the community committee to deliver and oversee specific 
community events from the Town Council’s agreed community event programme 
which have been delegated to it by the Community Committee. 

• Working group to advise officers and make recommendations to the community 
committee 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 144



         

31 
 

 
Delegations to Officers of Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council 

Function Delegation of Function 
Proper Officer and conduct the functions of the Proper Officer as provided 
by the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Town Clerk 

Manage all employees (not including any variation of employment contracts 
and not any matters relating to grievances lodged against him/her) of the 
council and has the authority to take disciplinary action excluding 
termination of employment under agreed procedures. 
 

Town Clerk 

In the first instance, handle and acknowledge all complaints regarding the 
council (except where the complaint relates to the clerk). 
 

Town Clerk 

Arrange and call meetings of the council, its committees and subcommittees 
in consultation with the relevant Chair. 
 

Town Clerk 

Monitor and be responsible for all incoming and outgoing council 
correspondence including items of publicity, news releases, newsletters etc. 
 

Town Clerk 

The Clerk shall, in the first instance, be responsible for conducting and 
implementing any council, committee or sub-committee decision.  
 

Town Clerk 

The Clerk shall, in the first instance, manage all requests for information 
under Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 

Town Clerk 

Operational management responsibility for all the activities of the Council as 
laid out in the scheme of delegations above.  
 

Town Clerk 

Respond to development control planning applications on behalf of the 
Council  

• Town Clerk may respond  on behalf of the Council to the following types of 
applications: - certificates of existing or proposed lawful use or development, display 
of advertisements, development applications restricted to telecommunications, 
discharge of conditions of approved applications and prior notification determinations  
provided that all Members of the committee are notified in advance and can ask for 
the matter to be referred to a committee with delegated planning powers 

P
age 145



         

32 
 

Respond to consultations  Town Clerk may respond on behalf of the Council to consultation documents as 
specified above 

In the event of a major incident preventing the Council from holding 
meetings, the Town Clerk shall have delegated authority to take all 
necessary decisions to keep the Council functions running and shall have 
authority to delegate decisions and responses to Council staff as required. 
The Clerk shall keep the Chair/Committee Chairs/Vice chair informed and 
shall take advice from these Members as required.  
 

Town Clerk 

Approval and issuing of news releases on behalf of the Town Council. Town Clerk 

Function as the Responsible Financial Officer to the Council and shall be 
responsible for the Town Council’s accounting procedures in accordance with 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations in force at any given time.  
 

Finance Manager 

The Responsible Financial Officer shall have delegated financial authority to 
authorise spend of up to £5000 ex VAT on emergency repairs in 
consultation with the Clerk and the Chair of Council, and up to £3000 ex 
VAT on any one invoice on normal running functions of the Council, subject 
to budget availability and approval from the Clerk 
 

Finance Manager 

The Finance Manager shall have responsibility for any debit card issued to 
the Council which must be restricted to a single transaction maximum value 
of £1,500 unless a larger amount is authorised by the Council or Finance 
committee in writing before order is placed. On-line purchases for software 
that are in excess of £1,500, delegated officer powers should be used (RFO 
or Proper Officer) in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of Finance 
and Governance whose approval would be sought in advance. 
 

Finance Manager 

 

 

The Finance Manager shall have de minimus capital expenditure authority 
to spend up to £2,000 ex VAT or to sell off assets to the same value with the 
agreement of the Clerk.  
 

Finance Manager 

On instruction from the Clerk the Finance Manager shall arrange to pay 
salaries and wages to all employees of the council (subject to the council’s 
financial regulations). 
 

Finance Manager 

The Finance Manager shall have authority to make virements of up to 
£2,000 within the approved budget with the agreement of the Clerk.  

Finance Manager 

P
age 146



         

33 
 

NB. Any financial, operational or managerial action delegated to the Town Clerk may in their absence be undertaken by the Deputy Town Clerk (Support Services Manager) if the matter cannot 
wait until the Town Clerk returns. 

 

P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Draft Communications Action Plan 2023-2024 

 

Communications 
Channel/Activity 

How Frequency Who 

Print 

Newsletter Focus on council’s priorities and 
showcase initiatives. 
 
Continue to improve and 
enhance the printed newsletter. 
Make use of increased imagery 
to support key messages. 
 
Refresh design to ensure the 
content is relevant and engaging 
for readers. 
 
Quality control checks to be 
undertaken on all published 
content throughout. 
 

4 x per year  Projects and Media Officer. 

Annual Survey Produce and issue towards the 
end of the calendar year with key 
themes to collect valuable data 
from the community that will 
enable informed decsions to be 
made. 
 

Once a year Projects and Media Officer. 

Annual Report Summarise the Town Council’s 
achievements in the last year 

Once a year Projects and Media Officer with 
the Officer team. 

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 14



 

including a brief overview of the 
last financial year’s accounts. 
 

Digital 

Website Utilise the new website 
functionality and ensure it reflects 
the Town Councils’s priorities 
and key messages. 
 
Make use of increased video and 
imagery whilst ensuring it still 
meets the highest standards of 
accessibility for residents. 
 
Ensure clear navigation and 
signposting to services provided 
by the Town Council and other 
local authorities. 

 
Monitor and keep track of key 
KPI’s such as website traffic, 
page views and click through 
rates. 
 

Weekly updates and 
maintenance 

Support Services Manager, 
Projects and Media Officer and 
Community events and Support 
Services Officer. 

Digital Newsletters Produce and release the digital 
newsletter whilst increasing 
subscription with residents. 
 

Monthly Projects and Media Officer. 

Social Media Build up social media following 
across all platforms including 
Instagram, Facebook, LinkedIn, 
Pinterest and Twitter. 
 

Daily (Pre scheduled automatic 
content) 

Projects and Media Officer and 
Community events and Support 
Services Officer. 

P
age 150



 

Make use of video and imagery 
to engage followers. Encourage 
councillors to feature in videos to 
help deliver key messages. 
 
Create content plan and strategy. 
 

Press Releases Press releases targeted at a 
variety of local press publications 
when required. 

As and when required Projects and Media Officer and 
Community events and Support 
Services Officer. 
 
Town Clerk/Support Services 
Manager to authorise press 
releases before go live. 
 

Media screens Make use of the digital screens 
located in key locations including 
the town centre and train 
stations. 
 

TBC Projects and Media Officer and 
Community events and Support 
Services Officer. 

Community Engagement 

Events and Markets Plan and deliver high quality 
events for the commnunity to 
attend and enjoy. 
 
Include involvement from local 
groups and businesses. 
 
Review and improve to ensure 
the events are well attended. 
 

Follow 2023-2024 events 
programme 

Community events and Support 
Services Officer and Officer 
team. 

Consultations Formal public consultation to be 
undertaken with local 

As and when required Officer Team. 

P
age 151



 

communities as and when 
required. 
 

Annual Meeting of Electors An opportunity to present an 
overview of Town Council actions 
and achievements. 
 
Electors to have a say on their 
achievements over the last year. 
 
Community groups will be 
encouraged to share activities 
over the last year. 
 

Annually Officer Team. 

Full Council and Committee 
Meetings 

Introduce live streaming on all 
meetings to allow people to 
attend remotely. 

Follow 2023-2024 Calendar of 
meetings schedule 

Councillors, Town Clerk, Support 
Services Manager, Finance 
Manager and Environment and 
Premises Manager. 

Council Offices Walk ins Encourage and welcome the 
community to visit Town Council 
offices. 
 
Provide a high level of customer 
service whilst assisting people 
obtain the answers they need. 
 

Within office open hours Officer Team. 

 

P
age 152



 

 

 

      
      
 

Agenda Item To consider a proposal to extend the free period of usage of 
Newton Leys Pavilion by Ping Pong Social at a cost of up to £2,574 

Council/Committee Full Council 

Meeting Date 25 April 2023 Report Writer John Fairclough – Support 
Services Manager 

Summary As a not-for-profit club, affiliated to Table Tennis England, they provide 
an affordable activity in Newton Leys, that provides a safe non-
judgmental welcoming space to have a Bat and chat.  The club is run by 
3 main volunteers, but the members to help regularly with the putting 
away of equipment.  Participants pay a small fee (£1 per child. £2 per 
adult). 

The space has been provided free of charge for 15 weeks to allow them 
to establish the group in the area. They have been running sessions 
6pm – 9m on a Wednesday evening. (This would cost £66 per week). 
The sessions are only run during term time. 

The aim is to help with mental health and keeping people active. It also 
provides a welcoming safe space for the local growing community to 
enjoy an affordable activity. 

Equipment is owned by the town council and getting well used by the 
Ping Pong Social group. 

Strategic Priorities Closer to our community: 
We will support the development of local community groups/social 
enterprises and initiatives which promote community resilience 

Equality/Inclusion 
Implications 

All Welcome 

Supporting 
Documentation (if 
any) 

n/a 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Background 

The Town Council started funding free swimming again in 2021 for residents of the parish who were in receipt 
of any of the following: Council Tax Reduction, Universal Credit, Personal Independence Payment, 
Employment and Support Allowance, Income Support, Invalid Care Allowance, Working Tax Credit or Pension 
Credit, adults aged 60 years and over, youths aged 3 to 16 years, those in further education aged 16 to 19 
years and those who are unemployed. 

Current charges are as follows: 

BFSTC FREE SWIM PRICES APRIL 2021 

Category Cost per 
swim 

Aged 60 years and 
over (‘Senior’) £2.20 

Aged 3 to 16 years  
(‘Junior’) £2.30 

Aged 16-19 years in full 
time education (‘Further 
Education’) 

£2.30 

Registered 
unemployed, disabled 
or receiving other types 
of support (Other)  

£3.80 

Agenda Item  To note the increase in swimming prices at Bletchley Leisure Centre and the 
impact this will have on the Town Council's free subsidised swimming scheme 

Council/Committee Full Council 

Meeting Date 25.04.2023 Report Writer  John Fairclough 

Purpose of report To note the increase in swimming prices at Bletchley Leisure Centre and the impact 
this will have on the Town Council's free subsidised swimming scheme 

Strategic Priorities Closer to the community 

Supporting wellbeing and safety 

Budget Codes and 
Costs 

415 Well-Being 

4582 Free Swimming (£27,000) 

Supporting 
Documentation (if 
any) 

Inspire All Partnership Agreement 

 

Page 155

Agenda Item 16



 

 

Detailed Considerations/Information 

A new SLA agreement has been sent over which is attached. The agreement details the increase in prices 
which take effect from 1 April 2023. 

BFSTC FREE SWIM PRICES APRIL 2023 

Category Cost per 
swim 

Aged 60 years and 
over (‘Senior’) £2.50 

Aged 3 to 16 years  
(‘Junior’) £2.50 

Aged 16-19 years in full 
time education (‘Further 
Education’) 

£2.50 

Registered 
unemployed, disabled 
or receiving other types 
of support (Other) (as 
set out in Appendix 2) 

£4.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

      
 

Page 156



Hire agreement for partnership agreement between IA & BFSTC relating 
to the provision of free swimming at Bletchley Leisure Centre. 

 

This Partnership Agreement is between: 
 

InspireAll [ a company limited by guarantee] whose registered office is at Unit 8, 
Borderlake House , Lowbell Lane, London Colney, Hertfordshire AL2 1HG (Company 
Registration Number 4343347). (IA) 
 
And Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council, Bletchley Library, Westfield 
Road, Bletchley, Milton Keynes MK2 2RA (BFSTC) 

Statement of intent 
Bletchley and Fenny Stratford Town Council (BFSTC) and Inspireall (IA) confirm their 
agreement to continued Partnership working and acknowledge the added value for 
BFSTC residents that can be achieved by this approach. 

Purpose of Agreement 
To define the aims, operational and management arrangements for the provision of 
free swimming at Bletchley Leisure Centre (BLC) to qualify residents living in BFSC 
parish area. (Listed in Appendix 1) 
 
Aims of Provision 
To encourage healthy lifestyles and physical activities amounts adults aged 60 years 
and over, youths aged 3 to 16 years, those in further education aged 16 to 19 years, 
and those who receive the following support; 

Council Tax Reduction 
Universal Credit 
Personal Independence Payment 
Employment and Support Allowance 
Income Support 
Invalid Care Allowance 
Working Tax Credit 
Pension Credit 
 
Purpose of the provision 
To provide access to free swimming to residents of BFSTC who are aged 60 years 
and over, youths aged 3 to 16 years, those in further education aged 16 to 19 years, 
and those who receive the above support. 

 

Terms of the agreement 
The agreement is effective from April 1ST 2023 for a period of 12 months. 
Continuation of this agreement will be subject to review. 

Page 157



Contributions and Roles of Partners 
IA agrees to administer the free swimming scheme, accepting completed application 
forms and suitable proof of ID and residency in the Bletchley and Fenny Stratford 
Town Council area. (Suitable proof of ID is set out in Appendix 2.) 
 
IA agrees to check all documents provided by applicants to ensure they meet the 
criteria for the scheme, and to issue scheme membership cards to qualifying BFSTC 
residents, at a fixed cost of £2.00 per annum. 
 
IA agrees to offer free swimming to approved members of the scheme at all “open” 
swimming sessions at BLC on presentation of proof of membership. 
 
IA will ensure that only membership card holders with postcodes within the BFSTC 
postcodes (as set out in Appendix 1) are offered free swimming funded by BFSTC. 
 
IA agrees to maintain accurate records of registration, attendance and use by 
approved residents, providing BFSTC with monthly data detailing the number of 
swims per calendar month and the breakdown within each category, including a 
breakdown by postcode area. 
 
BFSTC Agrees to pay any invoices within 14 days of receipt, for the period of this 
partnership agreement. Any Purchase order numbers will be given in advance to 
avoid delay in payment. 
 
Policies and Procedures 
The free swimming initiative will be managed within the “general terms and 
conditions of use” within BLC. The initiative will be subject to BLC general policies in 
respect of health and safety, safeguarding children and vulnerable adults etc. 
 
Evaluation and review 
IA will prepare and submit an annual report if requested, which can then be 
reviewed at a formal meeting by the Deputy Clerk BFSTC and the Regional Manger 
IA. 
 
Funding 
Funding will be paid by BFSTC monthly in arrears on receipt of invoices being raised 
by IA. Swims will be invoiced at rates specified in Appendix 3. Charges will be 
reviewed annually. 
 
Mechanism for addressing questions and concerns 
Any issues arising in relation to the provision of free swimming will initially be 
resolved by the deputy clerk (BFSTC) and Admin Manager IA. 
Should issues not be resolved they will be escalated to the regional manager (BLC) 
by the deputy Clerk (BFSTC) 

Page 158



Termination 
This agreement is for a period of twelve months and there are no arrangements for 
early termination. All agreements are subject to annual review and no commitment 
can be assumed beyond each 12 month period. 
 
 
Signed for on behalf of Inspreall: 

 

Print Name: __________________________ Date:___________ 

Signed: ______________________________ 

 

Signed for on Behalf of Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Council: 
 

Print Name: __________________________ Date:___________ 

 

Signed: ___________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159



Appendix 1 

Page 160



 

All OF Mk1, and Mk2 some of MK3 & MK17

MK1 1BA MK2 2FB MK2 2LA MK2 2PZ MK2 2UT MK2 3EJ MK2 3NY MK3 5FW MK3 5QW
MK1 1BE MK2 2FD MK2 2LB MK2 2QA MK2 2UZ MK2 3EL MK2 3NZ MK3 5FX MK3 5QX
MK1 1BG MK2 2FE MK2 2LD MK2 2QB MK2 2XE MK2 3EN MK2 3PA MK3 5FY MK3 5QY
MK1 1BH MK2 2FF MK2 2LE MK2 2QD MK2 2XP MK2 3EP MK2 3PB MK3 5FZ MK3 5QZ
MK1 1BJ MK2 2FG MK2 2LG MK2 2QE MK2 2YZ MK2 3ER MK2 3PD MK3 5GA MK3 5RH
MK1 1BL MK2 2FH MK2 2LH MK2 2QF MK2 3AB MK2 3ES MK2 3PE MK3 5GB MK3 5RJ
MK1 1BP MK2 2FJ MK2 2LJ MK2 2QL MK2 3AD MK2 3ET MK2 3PF MK3 5GD MK3 5RL
MK1 1BQ MK2 2FL MK2 2LL MK2 2QN MK2 3AE MK2 3EU MK2 3PG MK3 5GF MK3 5RN
MK1 1BW MK2 2FN MK2 2LN MK2 2RA MK2 3AF MK2 3EW MK2 3PP MK3 5GG MK3 5RP
MK1 1BY MK2 2FP MK2 2LP MK2 2RB MK2 3AG MK2 3EX MK2 3PQ MK3 5GH MK3 5RQ
MK1 1NE MK2 2FQ MK2 2LQ MK2 2RD MK2 3AH MK2 3EY MK2 3PR MK3 5GJ MK3 5RS
MK1 1NF MK2 2FR MK2 2LR MK2 2RE MK2 3AJ MK2 3EZ MK2 3PS MK3 5GL MK3 5RT
MK1 1NG MK2 2FS MK2 2LS MK2 2RF MK2 3AL MK2 3FD MK2 3PT MK3 5GN MK3 5RU
MK1 1NQ MK2 2FT MK2 2LT MK2 2RG MK2 3AN MK2 3FE MK2 3PU MK3 5GP MK3 5RW
MK1 1PA MK2 2FU MK2 2LTS MK2 2RH MK2 3AP MK2 3FG MK2 3PX MK3 5GQ MK3 5RX
MK2 1BW MK2 2FW MK2 2LU MK2 2RL MK2 3AQ MK2 3FH MK2 3PY MK3 5GR MK3 5RZ
MK2 2AF MK2 2GT MK2 2LW MK2 2RN MK2 3AR MK2 3FJ MK2 3PZ MK3 5GS MK3 5SB
MK2 2AL MK2 2HA MK2 2LX MK2 2RP MK2 3AS MK2 3HA MK2 3QA MK3 5GT MK3 5SE
MK2 2AQ MK2 2HB MK2 2LY MK2 2RQ MK2 3AT MK2 3HB MK2 3QB MK3 5GU MK3 5SG
MK2 2AS MK2 2HH MK2 2LZ MK2 2RR MK2 3AU MK2 3HD MK2 3QE MK3 5GW MK3 5SN
MK2 2AT MK2 2HJ MK2 2NB MK2 2RS MK2 3AW MK2 3HE MK2 3QF MK3 5GX MK35RJ
MK2 2AU MK2 2HL MK2 2ND MK2 2RU MK2 3BT MK2 3HF MK2 3QG MK3 5GY MK17 9GB
MK2 2AW MK2 2HN MK2 2NE MK2 2RW MK2 3BU MK2 3HG MK2 3QH MK3 5HB MK17 9GE
MK2 2BA MK2 2HP MK2 2NF MK2 2SA MK2 3BX MK2 3HH MK2 3QJ MK3 5HE MK17 9JH
MK2 2BG MK2 2HR MK2 2NG MK2 2SP MK2 3BY MK2 3LP MK2 3QN MK3 5HG MK17 9JJ
MK2 2BH MK2 2HS MK2 2NH MK2 2SQ MK2 3BZ MK2 3LR MK2 3QP MK3 5JU
MK2 2BJ MK2 2HT MK2 2NJ MK2 2SS MK2 3DA MK2 3LS MK2 3QR MK3 5LB
MK2 2BL MK2 2HU MK2 2NL MK2 2SW MK2 3DB MK2 3LT MK2 3QS MK3 5LG
MK2 2BQ MK2 2HW MK2 2NN MK2 2TG MK2 3DG MK2 3LU MK2 3QT MK3 5LY
MK2 2BS MK2 2HX MK2 2NP MK2 2TH MK2 3DH MK2 3LX MK2 3QU MK3 5NE
MK2 2BW MK2 2HY MK2 2NQ MK2 2TJ MK2 3DJ MK2 3LY MK2 3QW MK3 5NF
MK2 2BX MK2 2HZ MK2 2NR MK2 2TL MK2 3DL MK2 3LZ MK3 5AY MK3 5NW
MK2 2BY MK2 2JA MK2 2NT MK2 2TP MK2 3DN MK2 3NA MK3 5FB MK3 5NX
MK2 2DB MK2 2JB MK2 2NW MK2 2TQ MK2 3DP MK2 3NB MK3 5FD MK3 5NY
MK2 2DD MK2 2JD MK2 2NX MK2 2TR MK2 3DQ MK2 3ND MK3 5FE MK3 5NZ
MK2 2DE MK2 2JF MK2 2NY MK2 2TS MK2 3DR MK2 3NE MK3 5FF MK3 5PB
MK2 2DH MK2 2JG MK2 2NZ MK2 2TT MK2 3DS MK2 3NF MK3 5FG MK3 5PL
MK2 2DR MK2 2JH MK2 2PD MK2 2TW MK2 3DT MK2 3NG MK3 5FH MK3 5PN
MK2 2DW MK2 2JJ MK2 2PE MK2 2TX MK2 3DU MK2 3NN MK3 5FJ MK3 5PR
MK2 2DY MK2 2JL MK2 2PF MK2 2TZ MK2 3DW MK2 3NP MK3 5FL MK3 5PS
MK2 2DZ MK2 2JN MK2 2PG MK2 2UA MK2 3DX MK2 3NR MK3 5FN MK3 5PT
MK2 2EB MK2 2JQ MK2 2PR MK2 2UD MK2 3DY MK2 3NS MK3 5FP MK3 5PU
MK2 2ED MK2 2JW MK2 2PT MK2 2UG MK2 3DZ MK2 3NT MK3 5FQ MK3 5PW
MK2 2EH MK2 2JX MK2 2PU MK2 2UP MK2 3EA MK2 3NU MK3 5FS MK3 5PX
MK2 2ER MK2 2JY MK2 2PX MK2 2UQ MK2 3EB MK2 3NW MK3 5FT MK3 5PY
MK2 2EZ MK2 2JZ MK2 2PY MK2 2UR MK2 3EH MK2 3NX MK3 5FU MK3 5QU

Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Coucil postcodes

Page 161



 
 
 
Appendix 2 
In Receipt of any of the following Evidence required Type 

Council Tax Reduction Bill or Letter required Means Tested 

Universal Credit Notification Letter Means Tested 

Personal Independence Payment Notification Letter Ability Tested 

Employment and Support Allowance Notification Letter Ability Tested 

Income Support Notification Letter Means Tested 

Invalid Care Allowance Notification Letter Ability Tested 

Working Tax Credit Notification Letter Means Tested 

Pension Credit Notification Letter Means Tested 

 

And in addition to this, adults aged 60 years and over, youths aged 3 to 16 years, those in further 
education aged 16 to 19 years. Proof of age and address is required. 

 
Appendix 3 
 

BFSTC FREE SWIM PRICES APRIL 2023 

Category Cost per 
swim 

Aged 60 years and over 
(‘Senior’) £2.50 

Aged 3 to 16 years  
(‘Junior’) £2.50 

Aged 16-19 years in full 
time education (‘Further 
Education’) 

£2.50 

Registered unemployed, 
disabled or receiving 
other types of support 
(Other) (as set out in 
Appendix 2) 

£4.00 

 
 

 

Page 162



 

Mrs Delia Shephard 
Council Clerk Bletchley and Fenny Stratford CP 
Sycamore House 
Drayton Road 
Bletchley 
MK2 3RR 
 
 
18 April 2023 
 
 
Dear Mrs Shephard 
 
B2B, Unit 3 Stanier Square, Bletchley, Milton Keynes, MK2 2FY 
New Premise Licence Application 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
The above application for a premise in your area was received by Milton Keynes Licensing 
Authority on 14/04/2023.  Brief details of the application are as follows: 
 
Application Details 
Opening times: 11am - 11pm 
Sale of alcohol: 4pm - 10.30pm indoors only. 
Late Night Refreshment and sale of alcohol 11pm - 4am via online/phone 
deliveries only. 
CCTV System 
Challenge 25 Policy 
No food or drink to be consumed outside. 
 
 
Full details of the application can be viewed via the Licensing Register at the Civic Offices of the 
Council.  This is accessible Mondays to Thursdays between the hours of 9.00 am to 5.00 pm, and 
Fridays 9.00 am to 4.00 pm (excluding Bank Holidays).   
A copy of the application is also available to view online at:- 
 https://elicensing.milton-keynes.gov.uk/elr/start.aspx 
 
To alert people and businesses living in the vicinity of the premises, the applicant is required to 
post a blue notice on the outside of the premises for 28 days.  Additionally, they must place an 
advertisement in a local newspaper within 10 working days of the application being made. 
 
You may wish to note that we, as the licensing authority, also alert the responsible authorities 
under the legislation, which include the police and the fire & rescue service as well as certain 

 
Regulatory Services 
 

Reply to  Licensing 
Call  01908 252800   Ref: 165966 
E-mail  licensing@milton-keynes.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 17.i

https://elicensing.milton-keynes.gov.uk/elr/start.aspx


departments of the Council, such as Environmental Health, Development Control, child 
protection and Trading Standards. 
 
Any person or business can make representation both for and against the proposal within 28 
days of the date the application was made.  The Parish / Town Council may make a 
representation as the Parish Council or as a body representing persons who live in your area.  
The Parish / Town Council should note that they may be asked to demonstrate that this is the 
case.  
 
Please note that any representation must relate to one or more of the Licensing Objectives and 
will be sent to the applicant.  Representations requesting personal details be withheld from 
the applicant will only be considered in exceptional circumstances. Anonymous 
representations will not be accepted.  The Licensing Act 2003 does state that it is an offence to 
knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with this matter and the 
maximum fine of £5,000 is liable on summary conviction for the offence. 
 
Please remind your Council that, as the Code of Conduct also applies to licensing matters, any 
member who may be affected by the application is likely to have a ‘personal and prejudicial 
interest’ in the matter. As well as disclosing their interest and withdrawing from the chamber 
during relevant discussions, that member may not represent your council at any subsequent 
Licensing Hearing. 
 
If you are approached by persons or businesses for advice on how to make a representation 
there is information on our website (www.milton-keynes.gov.uk/licensing) and I enclose a copy 
of a form that you are free to copy for them to use if they wish. 
 
If you have any queries regarding the contents of this letter, please do not hesitate to contact 
members of the Licensing Team on MK 252800. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Milton Keynes Licensing Team 

Page 164

http://www.milton-keynes.gov.uk/licensing


 

The Licensing Team, Milton Keynes Council, Civic, 1 Saxon Gate East Milton Keynes MK9 3EJ  
  

Notification of Representation -  
IMPORTANT: 

To submit a representation to the application above you may use this form, or contact us in writing separately.  Once 
submitted to us your representation will become a public document and will be provided to the applicant. The 
applicant may wish to speak to you about your representation. Anonymous representations are only accepted in 
exceptional circumstances.  It is an offence to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with this 
application. 
 

B2B, Unit 3 Stanier Square, Bletchley, Milton Keynes, MK2 2FY 

Last Date for Representations: 28 days from 14/04/2023  

Your Name: 

Sycamore House Drayton Road Bletchley   MK2 3RR 

Tel Email 
 

 

 Which of the Licensing Objectives does your representation relate: 

1. Crime and Disorder:       Yes   No  

2. Public Safety:        Yes   No  

3. Public Nuisance:        Yes   No  

4.Protection of children from harm:     Yes   No  

Please explain how the above objectives would be undermined if a licence is granted? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
You can continue on a separate sheet if necessary.  
 

Can the applicant do anything to address your concerns?     Yes   No  

Please state any measure or requirement that the applicant could undertake to resolve your 
concerns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  Signed……………………………………………………………….    Dated: ……………………………….. 

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 28 March 2023 of Full Council
	5.i Draft Minutes of Community Committee 4 April 2023
	5.ii Draft minutes of Finance and Governance Committee 18 April 2023
	6 Changes to the financial regulations as recommended by the Finance and Governance Committee
	7 Receipt and approval of internal auditor's final report for the financial year 2022 -2023 as recommended by the Finance and Governance Committee
	8 To approve the council's annual governance statement and accountability return as  recommended by the Finance and Governance Committee
	9 To note the arrangements for advertising the period during which electors and interested persons may exercise rights relating to the annual accounts
	10 To note and approve  the Town Council's Annual Report for the year 2022- 23 to be presented at the annual meeting of electors on 11 May 2023
	11 To review the Town Council's delivery plan for the year 2022-2023
	12 To approve the Town Council's delivery plan for the financial year 2023-2024
	12 To approve the Town Council's delivery plan for the financial year 2023-2024
	Draft Delivery Plan 2023-24.2

	13 To review the Town Council's new constitution document and associated policies including the scheme of delegations and committee structure
	13 To review the Town Council's new constitution document and associated policies including the scheme of delegations and committee structure
	Revised Committee Structure and scheme of delegationsApril 2023

	14 To approve the Town Council's draft communications action plan for 2023-24 which includes resumption of live streaming of town council and committee meetings
	15 To consider a proposal to extend the free period of usage of Newton Leys Pavilion by Ping Pong Social at a cost of up to £2,574
	16 To note the increase in swimming prices at Bletchley Leisure Centre and the impact this will have on the Town Council's free subsidised swimming scheme
	16 To note the increase in swimming prices at Bletchley Leisure Centre and the impact this will have on the Town Council's free subsidised swimming scheme
	SLA 2023 BFSTC  IA - Price Increase
	Hire agreement for partnership agreement between IA & BFSTC relating to the provision of free swimming at Bletchley Leisure Centre.
	This Partnership Agreement is between:
	Signed for on Behalf of Bletchley & Fenny Stratford Town Council:


	17.i DBI04474 New Premises Licence Application - B2B, Unit 3 Stanier Square, Bletchley, Milton Keynes, MK2 2FY - Sale of alcohol: 4pm - 10.30pm indoors only.  Late Night Refreshment and sale of alcohol 11pm - 4am via online/phone deliveries only.

